

**ESTIMATES OF NATIONAL EXPENDITURE** 

# **ARTS AND CULTURE**









Department: National Treasury REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA

# Estimates of National Expenditure

# 2016

**National Treasury** 

**Republic of South Africa** 

24 February 2016



#### ISBN: 978-0-621-44244-1

#### RP: 15/2016

The 2016 Estimates of National Expenditure e-publications are compiled with the latest available information from departmental and other sources. Some of this information is unaudited or subject to revision.

The Estimates of National Expenditure e-publications for individual votes are available on www.treasury.gov.za.

Compared to the abridged version of the 2016 ENE, the 2016 ENE e-publications contain more comprehensive coverage of goods and services, transfers and subsidies, and programme specific personnel expenditure. Budget information is also provided for the public entities that are not shown in detail in the abridged publication. The abridged version of the ENE contains one additional table at the end of a chapter that shows expenditure on infrastructure, whereas the vote ENE e-publications' additional tables also contain information on conditional grants to provinces and municipalities, public private partnerships and donor funding. Expenditure information at the level of service delivery is also included, where appropriate.

# Foreword

The 2016 Budget is tabled at a time when both global and domestic economic conditions continue to be difficult. Government is unwavering in its commitment to stay the course of sound fiscal management in the face of this challenging environment. The approach of using the expenditure ceiling as a fiscal anchor, which was adopted in 2012, serves us well. To achieve the fiscal adjustment necessary, the expenditure level has been reduced and further revenue enhancement measures are introduced in the 2016 MTEF period.

Over the 2016 MTEF period expenditure is R3.73 trillion and will grow at an average annual rate of 7.5 per cent. Spending growth is slower than prior to 2008, but it still remains above the projected inflation rate. During consultations in the budget preparation process trade-offs in financing different policy objectives were carefully examined and culminated in recommendations on how institutional policies, practices and organisational arrangements would be adjusted in line with the national development plan and the 2014-2019 medium term strategic framework on the one hand, and in a manner consistent with fiscal consolidation, on the other hand.

For the 2016 MTEF period, budget amendments were effected through the reprioritisation of existing funding within the lowered expenditure ceiling, with movements away from areas of lower priority to key priorities. Labour-intensive departments received substantial funding for compensation of employees, owing to spending pressures related to the 2015 public sector wage agreement. In the case of departments which historically underspend on their wage bill, the budgets for compensation of employees have been reduced accordingly. A ceiling is put on compensation of employees budgets of national departments through the 2016 Appropriation Act. Resources cannot be diverted from frontline services for the wage bill.

Further reductions have been effected on goods and services budgets. In some cases departments have been asked to provide evidence of service delivery performance before funding can be appropriated to programmes under their specific votes. These provisional allocations, pending programme viability and verifiable record of good performance, total R17.8 billion in 2018/19. Given these measures, government service delivery will not be negatively affected even as spending growth is curtailed.

The financial information and key performance indicators in the institutional budget plans set out in the Estimates of National Expenditure, provide Parliament and the public with the information to hold government accountable against its 14 outcomes, set out in its medium term strategic framework.

The budget process is ably directed by the Ministers' Committee on the Budget, supported by a devoted Medium Term Expenditure Committee of Directors-General in central government departments. As the National Treasury team we are eternally grateful for their guidance and hard work. We are also indebted to the Budget Council, the Budget Forum and our national and provincial counterparts for making what is otherwise an impossible task, seem easier. The presentation of this budget is the product of all their collective efforts.

Lungisa Fuzile Director-General: National Treasury

# Introduction

## The Estimates of National Expenditure publications

The Estimates of National Expenditure (ENE) publications provide comprehensive information on how institutions have spent their budgets in previous years, and how institutions plan to spend the resources allocated to them over the upcoming three-year medium term expenditure framework (MTEF) period. Key performance indicators are included for each national government vote and entity reporting to the same executive authority, showing what institutions aim to achieve by spending their budget allocations in a particular manner. This information is based on government's 2014-2019 medium term strategic framework (MTSF), particularly as it is expressed in institutional strategic and annual performance plans, and in annual reports. Coupled with financial information, performance information provides Parliament and the public with the necessary facts to hold government accountable against the 14 outcomes set out in the 2014-2019 medium term strategic framework.

Each chapter in the abridged 2016 ENE publication relates to a specific budget vote. A separate, more detailed, e-publication is also available for each vote. These e-publications provide more detailed information than the relevant chapter in the abridged ENE, including on goods and services, transfers and subsidies, as well as on programme specific personnel expenditure. Budget information is also provided for the public entities that are not shown in detail in the abridged publication. Each chapter in the abridged ENE publication has a summary table showing expenditure on infrastructure, whereas the vote ENE e-publications' additional tables also contain summaries of expenditure on conditional grants to provinces and municipalities, departmental public private partnerships and information on donor funding. In some e-publications more detailed information at the level of site service delivery is also included.

In addition, a separate 2016 ENE Overview e-publication is also available summarising the ENE information across votes. The 2016 ENE Overview contains a narrative explanation and summary tables; a description of the budgeting approach; and it also has a write-up on how to interpret the information that is contained in each section of the publications.

**Arts and Culture** 

National Treasury Republic of South Africa



# Contents

Budget summary	1
Vote purpose	1
Mandate	1
Selected performance indicators	2
Expenditure analysis	2
Expenditure trends	4
Expenditure estimates	5
Personnel information	7
Departmental receipts	7
Programme 1: Administration	8
Programme 2: Institutional Governance	9
Programme 3: Arts and Culture Promotion and Development	12
Programme 4: Heritage Promotion and Preservation	17
Entities	21
Additional tables	41

# Vote 37

# **Arts and Culture**

## **Budget summary**

		2016/17	7		2017/18	2018/19
		Current	Transfers and	Payments for		
R million	Total	payments	subsidies	capital assets	Total	Total
MTEF allocation						
Administration	281.1	273.7	-	7.4	301.7	334.9
Institutional Governance	364.4	81.2	37.2	246.0	441.8	523.0
Arts and Culture Promotion and Development	1 094.7	113.7	981.0	-	1 140.5	1 190.7
Heritage Promotion and Preservation	2 330.6	128.6	2 202.0	-	2 608.6	2 494.2
Total expenditure estimates	4 070.9	597.2	3 220.2	253.4	4 492.7	4 542.9
Executive authority	Minister of Arts and Culture					
Accounting officer	Director General of Arts and C	Culture				
Website address	www.dac.gov.za					

The Estimates of National Expenditure e-publications for individual votes are available on www.treasury.gov.za. These publications provide more comprehensive coverage of vote specific information, particularly about goods and services, transfers and subsidies, personnel, entities, donor funding, public private partnerships, conditional grants to provinces and municipalities and expenditure information at the level of service delivery, where appropriate.

## Vote purpose

Contribute to sustainable economic development and enhance job creation by preserving, protecting and developing South African arts, culture and heritage to sustain a socially cohesive and democratic nation.

## Mandate

The Department of Arts and Culture derives its mandate from the following legislation:

- the Heraldry Act (1962)
- the Culture Promotion Act (1983)
- the National Archives and Record Service of South Africa Act (1996)
- the Legal Deposit Act (1997)
- the South African Geographical Names Council Act (1998)
- the Cultural Institutions Act (1998)
- the National Council for Library and Information Act (2001)
- the National Heritage Resources Act (1999)
- the Use of Official Languages Act (2012).

Broadly, this legislation mandates the department to:

- · develop and promote arts and culture in South Africa, and mainstream its role in social development
- develop and promote the official languages of South Africa, and enhance the linguistic diversity of the country
- improve economic and other development opportunities for South African arts and culture nationally and globally through mutually beneficial partnerships in order to ensure the sustainability of the sector
- develop and monitor the implementation of policy, legislation and strategic direction for the identification, conservation and promotion of cultural heritage.

# Selected performance indicators

Indicator	Programme	Outcome		Past		Current			
	-		2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19
Number of community conversations on social cohesion and nation building conducted per year	Institutional Governance	Outcome 14: Nation building and social cohesion	611	_2	45	33	33	33	33
Number of artists placed in schools per year	Arts and Culture Promotion and Development	Outcome 1: Quality basic education	75	200	240	300	340	380	420
Number of flagship cultural events supported per year	Arts and Culture Promotion and Development	Outcome 14: Nation	19	22	22	25	25	18	20
Number of language practice bursaries awarded per year	Arts and Culture Promotion and Development	building and social cohesion	555	336	320	320	320	320	320
Number of part time job opportunities created across all work streams of the Mzansi golden economy strategy per year	Arts and Culture Promotion and Development	Outcome 4: Decent employment through inclusive economic growth	25 850	28 000	28 200	20 990	15 000	18 000	20 000
Number of community arts programmes activated per year	Arts and Culture Promotion and Development		_3	_3	9	80	150	200	250
Number of flagpoles and flags installed at schools per year	Heritage Promotion and Preservation	-	184	1 000	15 000	2 000	500	_4	_4
Percentage of schools that have booklet and poster (frame) of national symbols and orders per year	Heritage Promotion and Preservation	Outcome 14: Nation building and social	_3	_3	25% (6 423)	50% (12 846)	75% (19 269)	100% (25 692)	_4
Number of bursaries in heritage studies awarded per year	Heritage Promotion and Preservation	cohesion	65	106	120	65	65	65	65
Number of community libraries built per year	Heritage Promotion and Preservation		14	16	17	20	23	26	29
Number of community libraries upgraded per year	Heritage Promotion and Preservation		37	40	45	50	55	60	65

1. This figure includes pre-summit and post-summit engagements. The increase in 2012/13 was due to community conversations leading up to and after the 2012 national social cohesion summit. 2. No target was set, therefore no conversations were held.

3. These are new indicators to give effect to outcome 14 and government's 2014-2019 medium term strategic framework.

4. These programmes are discontinued from the respective years

# **Expenditure analysis**

Over the medium term, the Department of Arts and Culture will focus on developing arts, culture and heritage infrastructure, positioning the cultural and creative industries as drivers of economic growth and job creation, and contributing to social cohesion and nation building. The department's work contributes substantially to outcome 14 (nation building and social cohesion) of the 2014-2019 medium term strategic framework, as well as to outcome 4 (decent employment through inclusive economic growth) and outcome 1 (quality basic education).

The department's compensation of employees budget has been decreased by R18.3 million in 2017/18 and R30.2 million in 2018/19, and its goods and services budget by R52.3 million over the MTEF period. These decreases are part of the Cabinet approved budget reductions to lower the national aggregate expenditure ceiling. After consultation with the Department of Public Service and Administration and National Treasury, the department will develop and implement a plan to manage its personnel expenditure within its reduced personnel budget.

#### Developing arts, culture and heritage infrastructure

To redress the historical imbalances in how South African heritage has been narrated, and to contribute to social transformation, the department will maintain its momentum over the medium term constructing heritage infrastructure where previously there was none. Capital works projects amounting to R990.7 million are budgeted for in the *Institutional Governance* programme, comprising 74.4 per cent of the programme's total budget of R1.3 billion over the medium term. The main focus will be on the liberation heritage route. In 2016/17, 3 key sites per province will have been identified, and design and construction of new infrastructure or rehabilitation of existing infrastructure will begin, to be completed by 2018/19. Also in 2016/17, the department will conduct a feasibility study on a liberation movement museum. Heritage infrastructure projects that will be completed over the medium term include: the Sarah Baartman Centre of Remembrance in Hankey in Eastern Cape, to be completed in March 2018/19 (R137.3 million), the OR Tambo Memorial in Mbizana in Eastern

Cape, to be completed in 2017/18 (R14 million), and the Ingquza Hill Museum in Lusikisiki in Eastern Cape, to be completed in 2018/19 (R41 million). In addition to historical redress and social transformation, these projects have significant potential for tourism and will contribute to creating work opportunities in the communities in which the projects are based.

The department continues to support the delivery of infrastructure, technology and capacity building for community libraries, and the purchase of library materials, particularly in rural areas and some townships over the medium term. R2.1 billion over the period has been earmarked in the community library services grant for constructing 78 new libraries and upgrading 180 existing libraries. The department will also prioritise providing 60 dual purpose service points to support school curricula and enhance learning outcomes. Dual purpose service points are libraries that serve both the general community and its surrounding schools. The department has developed norms and standards for community libraries to ensure the most basic and equitable access to library services in communities. The related bill will be submitted to Cabinet in 2016/17.

#### Positioning the cultural and creative industries as drivers of economic growth and job creation

The department will continue to implement its Mzansi golden economy strategy over the MTEF period. The primary objective of the strategy is to create employment and stimulate the economy in the arts, culture and heritage sector. The strategy provides funds to creative industry practitioners to allow them to, amongst others participate in international professional development events to which they have been officially invited, such as conferences, festivals, performances and exhibitions. It also supports arts and culture productions to tour South Africa and internationally. Over the medium term, the department plans to support 170 such ventures. The Mzansi golden economy strategy also hosts 63 flagship cultural events over the medium term at an estimated cost of R532.1 million over the period, budgeted for in the Cultural and Creative Industries Development subprogramme in the Arts and Culture Promotion and Development programme. There are national flagship cultural events, such as the Buyel'Ekhaya Pan African Music Festival (Eastern Cape), the Joy of Jazz Festival (Gauteng), and the Marula Festival (Limpopo) and the Diamonds and Dorings Festival (Northern Cape). Another part of the strategy is to develop major international exchange platforms such as Africa Month and international cultural seasons. The cultural seasons are a programme of arts and culture exchange between South Africa and another country to create new international markets for South African arts and culture products. The department is planning the South Africa-Russia Season for the medium term. The department projects that the Mzansi golden economy strategy will create an estimated 53 000 work opportunities over the period.

The department has created a framework for a more feasible model for the National Creative Industries Academy of South Africa in response to information from the 2013 creative industries mapping study, the department's 2014 review of the academy, and the current fiscal environment. Over the medium term, the department plans rapid skills delivery training interventions in the arts nationally, such as performing arts incubators and master classes. These interventions equip artists to create new work and enter the art market. 6 performing arts incubator programmes were implemented in 2015/16 in partnership with the department's performing arts institutions, and over the medium term a further 12 incubators will be identified through open calls for proposals. The department will also provide 10 training programmes per year in identified scarce and critical skills, in particular related to arts and culture entrepreneurship, such as music business skills and core skills in the film industry. R105.6 million is allocated over the medium term towards these rapid skills delivery training interventions, also in the *Cultural and Creative Industries Development* subprogramme in the *Arts and Culture Promotion and Development* programme.

The department will establish a venture capital fund in partnership with the National Empowerment Fund over the medium term. This fund will finance and develop small, medium and micro enterprises (SMMEs), and through venture capital grants fund self-sustainable arts and culture projects run by previously disadvantaged South Africans. The aim is to unlock the economic potential of the arts, culture and heritage sectors, and the department has allocated R100 million to the venture capital fund over the medium term.

#### Contributing to social cohesion and nation building

The department has developed various social cohesion and nation building programmes based on the resolutions of the 2012 national social cohesion summit. Over the medium term, the department will continue to drive these programmes, including hosting community conversations, which are ongoing national social dialogues that seek to understand the possibilities and challenges of nation building and social cohesion. In addition, a group of

distinguished persons has been appointed as social cohesion advocates to play a prominent role in taking forward the summit resolutions. R12.3 million over the MTEF period has been budgeted in the Social Cohesion and Nation Building subprogramme in the Institutional Governance programme for conducting 33 community conversations per year, and R7.7 million for the social cohesion advocates programme. There will be fewer community conversations than in previous years as the department redirects funds to other social cohesion and nation building programmes. In 2018/19, the department will host a national social cohesion summit on progress in achieving the 2012 summit resolutions. R7.5 million is budgeted for the summit in the Social Cohesion and Nation Building subprogramme in the Institutional Governance programme.

Over the medium term, the department will support the Moral Regeneration Movement, a non-profit advocacy platform that facilitates and coordinates processes and initiatives to regenerate and preserve national morals. The deputy president is the patron of the Moral Regeneration Movement, and the Presidency is responsible for ensuring the implementation of the organisation's mandate. R10.5 million is budgeted for this in the Social Cohesion and Nation Building subprogramme in the Institutional Governance programme.

## **Expenditure trends**

Table 37.2 Vote expenditure trends by programme and economic classification

Programmes

- 1. Administration
- 2. Institutional Governance

3. Arts and Culture Promotion and Development

4. Heritage Promotion and Pre	servation													
Programme														-
	Annual budget	Adjusted appropriation	Audited outcome	Annual budget	Adjusted appropriation	Audited outcome	Annual budget	Adjusted appropriation	Audited outcome	Annual budget	Adjusted appropriation	Revised estimate	Outcome/Annual budget Average (%)	Outcome/Adjusted appropriation Average (%)
R million		2012/13			2013/14			2014/15			2015/16		2012/13	- 2015/16
Programme 1	195.0	181.8	210.8	214.5	214.1	242.7	228.3	234.4	253.2	244.0	242.4	253.6	108.9%	110.0%
Programme 2	78.9	111.4	116.3	216.7	256.9	296.2	240.1	100.0	261.8	424.1	397.6	341.5	105.8%	117.3%
Programme 3	895.4	859.7	813.5	1 025.6	898.1	888.4	1 032.9	1 031.5	998.0	1 076.2	1 076.2	1 058.2	93.3%	97.2%
Programme 4	1 519.3	1 522.5	1 518.7	1 460.9	1 548.6	1 379.2	2 026.5	2 158.8	1 941.3	2 175.6	2 109.9	2 107.7	96.7%	94.6%
Total	2 688.5	2 675.3	2 659.3	2 917.8	2 917.8	2 806.5	3 527.7	3 524.7	3 454.2	3 919.9	3 826.0	3 761.0	97.1%	98.0%
Change to 2015 Budget estimate											(93.8)			
Economic classification														
Current payments	581.7	542.7	489.1	669.1	680.9	496.9	693.3	609.0	534.7	640.2	634.7	643.2	83.7%	87.7%
Compensation of employees	180.0	183.0	172.7	196.4	196.4	190.8	209.9	209.9	206.3	221.9	220.4	218.9	97.6%	97.4%
Goods and services	401.6	359.7	316.3	472.7	484.5	306.1	483.4	399.1	328.3	418.4	414.4	424.4	77.4%	83.0%
of which:														
Administrative fees	2.3	2.3	6.9	4.6	3.9	4.9	4.8	1.6	0.9	2.7	1.3	1.3	97.3%	155.3%
Advertising	4.3	4.4	8.4	6.0	7.4	4.3	8.0	7.0	14.4	12.5	10.9	10.9	123.6%	128.5%
Minor assets	2.9	2.9	0.4	2.3	0.7	0.1	0.3	0.3	0.2	0.3	0.8	0.8	26.1%	32.1%
Audit costs: External	2.0	2.5	5.3	5.6	3.8	4.8	4.3	4.6	8.2	4.9	6.4	6.4	147.1%	142.9%
Bursaries: Employees	0.5	0.5	0.5	1.0	1.0	0.5	0.8	0.8	0.7	0.8	0.7	0.7	79.1%	80.9%
Catering: Departmental activities	1.7	1.7	2.2	2.3	2.5	3.0	1.7	3.1	3.7	3.1	4.0	4.0	146.4%	114.5%
Communication	7.5	7.8	8.7	7.2	8.9	9.3	7.4	8.1	9.3	8.1	7.6	7.6	115.7%	107.5%
Computer services	3.4	3.4	3.1	7.7	4.9	6.0	8.3	10.0	12.6	9.4	11.2	11.2	114.5%	111.8%
Consultants: Business and advisory services	14.1	19.1	2.6	8.6	4.3	5.2	3.7	7.3	4.5	41.0	33.6	33.6	67.9%	71.2%
Legal services	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	5.0	5.6	5.6	112.7%	100.0%
Science and technological services	0.5	2.5	3.1	1.6	3.9	1.9	4.7	4.7	4.9	-	-	-	145.7%	88.8%
Contractors	19.9	21.0	63.8	24.0	29.2	40.8	46.9	83.0	81.4	44.2	87.1	87.1	202.3%	124.0%
Agency and support/outsourced services	205.9	152.0	71.6	247.0	252.2	105.2	238.3	95.8	51.9	106.2	61.1	61.1	36.3%	51.7%
Entertainment	0.4	0.4	0.3	0.6	0.6	0.3	0.2	0.1	0.1	0.2	0.2	0.2	66.4%	73.9%
Fleet services (including government motor transport)	-	-	0.1	-	0.0	5.8	1.5	2.2	2.8	1.7	2.6	2.6	350.5%	230.3%
Inventory: Fuel, oil and gas	0.3	0.3	0.0	0.3	0.1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	3.7%	4.9%
Inventory: Materials and supplies	7.6	3.0	0.3	3.6	2.8	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	2.9%	5.5%

#### Table 37.2 Vote expenditure trends by programme and economic classification

Table 37.2 Vote expe	mantur		by pic	granni		CONOIN		meation						
Economic classification	Annual budget	Adjusted appropriation	Audited outcome	Annual budget	Adjusted appropriation	Audited outcome	Annual budget	Adjusted appropriation	Audited outcome	Annual budget	Adjusted appropriation	Revised estimate	Outcome/Annual budget Average (%)	Outcome/Adjusted appropriation Average (%)
R million		2012/13			2013/14			2014/15			2015/16			- 2015/16
Inventory: Other supplies	-	0.0	-	0.3	0.3	4.9	-	-	46.1	-	-	-	16 336.2%	15 586.9%
Consumable supplies	4.3	4.3	0.8	2.6	4.9	5.0	5.9	1.5	1.6	6.0	5.5	5.5	69.0%	80.3%
Consumables: Stationery, printing and office supplies	5.1	6.3	3.1	2.8	2.8	0.6	2.2	2.1	1.3	2.6	2.7	2.7	61.4%	55.8%
Operating leases	61.3	60.7	48.3	70.2	69.5	9.7	73.8	74.1	15.0	77.2	61.2	66.2	49.3%	52.4%
Rental and hiring	15.0	22.0	22.4	22.1	20.9	8.4	23.7	23.8	11.3	-	-	-	69.1%	63.2%
Property payments	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	24.4	35.1	40.1	164.7%	114.2%
Transport provided: Departmental activity	22.3	25.4	54.1	34.3	48.0	73.9	37.5	49.4	46.9	-	-	-	186.0%	142.4%
Travel and subsistence	1.8	1.8	2.0	2.0	1.6	1.8	1.7	2.3	1.8	57.8	64.3	64.3	110.5%	100.1%
Training and development	12.1	8.3	1.7	10.3	1.5	3.4	1.8	4.7	3.9	2.6	2.5	2.5	42.9%	67.5%
Operating payments	6.6	7.2	6.2	5.5	9.0	5.7	5.7	12.5	4.9	2.9	5.3	5.3	106.9%	65.1%
Venues and facilities	-	-	0.1	0.5	-	0.6	0.1	0.2	0.0	4.7	4.7	4.7	103.0%	112.4%
Interest and rent on land	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	0.1	-	-	-	-	-
Transfers and subsidies	2 100.2	2 125.6	2 164.8	2 241.7	2 229.9	2 281.8	2 827.1	2 908.4	2 908.4	3 162.1	2 947.3	2 932.3	99.6%	100.7%
Provinces and municipalities	564.6	564.6	564.6	597.8	597.8	606.3	1 016.2	1 032.8	1 019.7	1 311.0	1 274.3	1 274.3	99.3%	99.9%
Departmental agencies and accounts	1 435.8	1 437.0	1 429.6	1 535.9	1 535.9	1 433.9	1 643.4	1 606.4	1 520.1	1 449.0	1 313.8	1 313.8	94.0%	96.7%
Higher education institutions	-	-	-	-	-	3.0	12.5	1.0	0.6	-	-	-	28.6%	364.3%
Foreign governments and international organisations	-	7.5	-	1.8	-	2.9	3.0	3.2	3.1	3.7	4.2	4.2	120.4%	68.7%
Public corporations and private enterprises	-	-	-	-	-	54.1	2.4	11.6	147.3	201.3	167.9	152.9	173.9%	197.3%
Non-profit institutions	12.9	12.9	12.9	38.5	38.5	102.3	121.9	205.4	193.1	166.5	162.0	162.0	138.4%	112.3%
Households	87.0	103.6	157.7	67.7	57.6	79.3	27.7	48.0	24.5	30.6	25.1	25.1	134.6%	122.3%
Payments for capital assets	6.6	7.0	5.3	7.0	7.0	27.7	7.4	7.4	10.6	117.5	244.0	185.5	165.4%	86.3%
Buildings and other fixed structures	-	-	-	-	-	8.2	-	-	-	107.1	233.7	175.1	171.0%	78.4%
Machinery and equipment	6.6	7.0	5.1	7.0	7.0	7.0	7.4	7.4	5.2	7.4	7.4	7.4	86.9%	85.6%
Heritage assets	-	-	0.0	-	-	-	-	-	1.8	-	-	-	-	-
Software and other intangible assets	-	-	0.2	-	-	12.6	-	-	3.6	3.0	3.0	3.0	646.9%	646.9%
Payments for financial asset	s –		0.1	-	-	0.1	-	-	0.5	_		-	-	-
Total	2 688.5	2 675.3	2 659.3	2 917.8	2 917.8	2 806.5	3 527.7	3 524.7	3 454.2	3 919.9	3 826.0	3 761.0	97.1%	98.0%

# **Expenditure estimates**

Table 37.3 Vote expenditure estimates by programme and economic classification

Programmes

1. Administration

2. Institutional Governance

3. Arts and Culture Promotion and Development

4. Heritage Promotion and Preservation

Programme	Revised	Average growth	Expenditure/ Total:				Average growth	Expenditure/ Total:
	estimate	rate (%)	Average	Madium tarn	n expenditure estin	a a ta	rate (%)	Average
			(%)					(%)
R million	2015/16	2012/13 -	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 -	2018/19
Programme 1	253.6	11.7%	7.6%	281.1	301.7	334.9	9.7%	6.9%
Programme 2	341.5	45.3%	8.0%	364.4	441.8	523.0	15.3%	9.9%
Programme 3	1 058.2	7.2%	29.6%	1 094.7	1 140.5	1 190.7	4.0%	26.6%
Programme 4	2 107.7	11.5%	54.8%	2 330.6	2 608.6	2 494.2	5.8%	56.6%
Total	3 761.0	12.0%	100.0%	4 070.9	4 492.7	4 542.9	6.5%	100.0%
Change to 2015 Budget estimate				(32.5)	145.7	(56.3)		

#### Table 37.3 Vote expenditure estimates by programme and economic classification

Economic classification		Average	Expenditure/				Average	Expenditure/
	Revised	growth rate	Total: Average				growth rate	Total: Average
	estimate	(%)	(%)	Medium-tern	n expenditure estim	nate	(%)	(%)
R million	2015/16	2012/13 -		2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 -	
Current payments	643.2	5.8%	17.1%	597.2	645.8	695.5	2.6%	15.3%
Compensation of employees	218.9	6.1%	6.2%	238.3	235.0	256.4	5.4%	5.6%
Goods and services	424.4	5.7%	10.8%	358.8	410.7	439.1	1.1%	9.7%
of which:								
Administrative fees	1.3	-18.1%	0.1%	2.2	2.5	2.6	27.2%	0.1%
Advertising	10.9	35.6%	0.3%	9.2	12.7	13.5	7.3%	0.3%
Minor assets	0.8	-35.1%	0.0%	0.5	0.5	0.5	-12.2%	0.0%
Audit costs: External	6.4	35.9%	0.2%	5.1	5.4	5.7	-3.5%	0.1%
Bursaries: Employees	0.7	11.7%	0.0%	0.7	0.8	0.8	5.6%	0.0%
Catering: Departmental activities	4.0	34.4%	0.1%	3.2	3.6	3.6	-4.0%	0.1%
Communication	7.6	-0.8%	0.3%	8.4	9.0	9.5	7.6%	0.2%
Computer services	11.2	49.5%	0.3%	10.9	11.5	12.2	2.8%	0.3%
Consultants: Business and advisory services	33.6	20.7%	0.4%	32.9	44.9	24.0	-10.6%	0.8%
Legal services	5.6	-	0.0%	4.7	5.2	5.2	-2.3%	0.1%
Contractors	87.1	60.8%	2.2%	35.0	39.2	40.3	-22.6%	1.2%
Agency and support/outsourced services	61.1	-26.2%	2.3%	42.5	46.5	64.0	1.5%	1.3%
Entertainment	0.2	-21.4%	0.0%	0.2	0.3	0.3	7.0%	0.0%
Fleet services (including government motor transport)	2.6	-	0.1%	1.8	1.7	1.8	-12.1%	0.0%
Consumable supplies	5.5	8.6%	0.1%	6.4	7.0	7.3	10.1%	0.2%
Consumables: Stationery, printing and office supplies	2.7	-24.6%	0.1%	3.5	3.8	4.0	14.2%	0.1%
Operating leases	66.2	2.9%	1.1%	83.4	121.6	139.1	28.1%	2.4%
Property payments	40.1	-	0.3%	44.8	27.0	33.5	-5.8%	0.9%
Travel and subsistence	64.3	230.5%	0.6%	53.8	58.4	61.1	-1.7%	1.4%
Training and development	2.5	-33.0%	0.1%	2.7	2.8	3.0	5.8%	0.1%
Operating payments	5.3	-9.9%	0.2%	3.0	3.0	3.2	-15.4%	0.1%
Venues and facilities	4.7	_	0.0%	3.8	3.7	3.9	-6.2%	0.1%
Transfers and subsidies	2 932.3	11.3%	81.1%	3 220.2	3 552.0	3 566.8	6.7%	78.7%
Provinces and municipalities	1 274.3	31.2%	27.3%	1 357.1	1 440.8	1 522.0	6.1%	33.2%
Departmental agencies and accounts	1 313.8	-2.9%	44.9%	1 522.2	1 753.0	1 572.8	6.2%	36.5%
Foreign governments and international organisations	4.2	-17.7%	0.1%	3.7	4.1	4.3	0.9%	0.1%
Public corporations and private enterprises	152.9	-	2.8%	146.2	165.8	270.1	20.9%	4.4%
Non-profit institutions	162.0	132.6%	3.7%	163.3	157.4	162.6	0.1%	3.8%
Households	25.1	-37.7%	2.3%	27.7	31.0	35.0	11.8%	0.7%
Payments for capital assets	185.5	197.7%	1.8%	253.4	295.0	280.6	14.8%	6.0%
Buildings and other fixed structures	175.1	-	1.4%	239.8	276.8	248.1	12.3%	5.6%
Machinery and equipment	7.4	1.7%	0.2%	7.4	7.7	8.2	3.4%	0.2%
Software and other intangible assets	3.0	-	0.2%	6.2	10.5	24.3	100.7%	0.3%
Total	3 761.0	12.0%	100.0%	4 070.9	4 492.7	4 542.9	6.5%	100.0%

# **Personnel information**

Table 37.4 Vote personnel numbers and cost by salary level and programme<sup>1</sup> prior to Cabinet approved reduction, effective from 2017/18<sup>2</sup>; budget reductions and aggregate baseline total

Programmes

1. Administration

2. Institutional Governance

3. Arts and Culture Promotion and Development 4 Heritage Promotion and Preservation

4. Heritage Pro			1															r	
		per of posts																	
		mated for																	
		arch 2016			N	lumber and	d cost <sup>3</sup> of	person	nel posts	filled / pl	anned f	or on fund	ed establ	ishmen	t				mber
	Number	Number																Average	Salary
	of	of posts																•	level/Total:
	funded	additional				<b>.</b> .												rate	Average
	posts	to the		Actual			sed estin	nate			Med	lium-term e	_	ire estii				(%)	(%)
-		establishment	2	2014/15								2015/16	- 2018/19						
			N	<b>A</b>	Unit		<b>A</b>		N	•			<b>A</b>		N	<b>A</b>			
Arts and Cultu			Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost		
Salary level	512	48	453	206.3	0.5	509	218.9	0.4	512	238.3	0.5	512	253.3	0.5	512	286.6	0.6	0.2%	100.0%
1 – 6	112	33	88	14.4	0.2	112	14.8	0.1	112	16.0	0.1	112	17.0	0.2	112	20.1	0.2	-	21.9%
7 – 10	240	6	209	69.0	0.3	238	81.1	0.3	240	88.5	0.4	240	94.2	0.4	240	105.4	0.4	0.3%	46.8%
11 – 12	102	3	96	59.5	0.6	101	63.7	0.6	102	69.2	0.7	102	73.8	0.7	102	83.2	0.8	0.3%	19.9%
13 – 16	56	6	58	56.6	1.0	56	55.1	1.0	56	60.1	1.1	56	63.3	1.1	56	72.2	1.3	-	11.0%
Other	2	-	2	6.8	3.4	2	4.2	2.1	2	4.6	2.3	2	4.9	2.4	2	5.8	2.9	-	0.4%
Programme	512	48	453	206.3	0.5	509	218.9	0.4	512	238.3	0.5	512	253.3	0.5	512	286.6	0.6	0.2%	100.0%
Programme 1	206	26	183	89.5	0.5	206	92.9	0.5	206	100.4	0.5	206	106.8	0.5	206	120.8	0.6	-	40.3%
Programme 2	61	5	45	26.7	0.6	61	33.1	0.5	61	35.8	0.6	61	38.0	0.6	61	43.1	0.7	-	11.9%
Programme 3	103	11	87	41.4	0.5	103	45.1	0.4	103	48.7	0.5	103	51.8	0.5	103	58.6	0.6	-	20.1%
Programme 4	142	6	138	48.7	0.4	139	47.8	0.3	142	53.4	0.4	142	56.7	0.4	142	64.1	0.5	0.7%	27.6%
Reduction	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	(18.3)	-	-	(30.2)	-	-	-
Total	512	48	453	206.3	0.5	509	218.9	0.4	512	238.3	0.5	-	235.0	-	-	256.4	I	-	-

1. Data has been provided by the department and may not necessarily reconcile with official government personnel data.

2. The department's compensation of employees budget has been reduced by R48.5 million for 2017/18 and 2018/19. After consultation with the Department of Public Service and Administration and National Treasury, the department will finalise, develop and implement a plan to manage its personnel expenditure within this reduced expenditure ceiling. 3. Rand million.

## **Departmental receipts**

#### Table 37.5 Departmental receipts by economic classification

`						Average growth	Receipt item/ Total:				Average growth	Receipt item/ Total:
				Adjusted	Revised	rate	Average	Mediu	ım-term rec	eipts	rate	Average
D the use and		lited outco		estimate 2015/	estimate	(%)	(%)  3 - 2015/16	2016/17	estimate 2017/18	2018/19	(%)	(%)
R thousand Departmental receipts	2012/13 1 856	2013/14 544	2014/15 3 301	3 2015/	3 210	2012/	13 - 2015/16 100.0%	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	-36.2%	<u>6 - 2018/19</u> 100.0%
Sales of goods and services produced by	1 000	344	3 301	3 203	3210	20.0%	100.076	130	110	034	-30.2%	100.0%
department	229	247	263	294	293	8.6%	11.6%	200	213	226	-8.3%	16.7%
Sales by market establishments	14	16	15	24	24	19.7%	0.8%	13	15	17	-10.9%	1.2%
of which:												
Rental parking: Covered and open	14	16	15	24	24	19.7%	0.8%	13	15	17	-10.9%	1.2%
Administrative fees	1	4	5	7	5	71.0%	0.2%	5	6	7	11.9%	0.4%
of which:												
Promotion of Access to Information Act (2000)	1	4	5	5	5	71.0%	0.2%	5	6	7	11.9%	0.4%
Duplicate certificates	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	_
Other sales	214	227	243	263	264	7.2%	10.6%	182	192	202	-8.5%	15.1%
of which:												
Coat of arms	113	106	108	116	116	0.9%	5.0%	110	115	120	1.1%	8.3%
Photocopy and faxes	25	42	50	81	81	48.0%	2.2%	30	35	40	-21.0%	3.3%
Commission on insurance and garnishee	74	77	78	60	60	-6.8%	3.2%	35	35	35	-16.4%	3.0%
Departmental Production	2	1	2	6	2	-	0.1%	2	2	2	-	0.1%
Transportation fees	-	1	5	-	5	-	0.1%	5	5	5	-	0.4%
Fines, penalties and forfeits	1	1	4	-	6	81.7%	0.1%	1	1	1	-45.0%	0.2%
Interest, dividends and rent on land	3	17	12	11	11	54.2%	0.5%	7	7	7	-14.0%	0.6%
Interest	3	17	12	11	11	54.2%	0.5%	7	7	7	-14.0%	0.6%
Sales of capital assets	168	-	25	-	-	-100.0%	2.2%	-	-	-	-	-
Transactions in financial assets and liabilities	1 455	279	2 997	2 900	2 900	25.8%	85.6%	550	555	600	-40.9%	82.6%
Total	1 856	544	3 301	3 205	3 210	20.0%	100.0%	758	776	834	-36.2%	100.0%

# **Programme 1: Administration**

#### Programme purpose

Provide strategic leadership, management and support services to the department.

#### Expenditure trends and estimates

#### Table 37.6 Administration expenditure trends and estimates by subprogramme and economic classification

Subprogramme				Adjusted	Average growth rate	Expen- diture/ Total: Average	Medium	-term expe	enditure	Average growth rate	Expen- diture/ Total: Average
		ited outcome		appropriation	(%)	(%)		estimate		(%)	(%)
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16		- 2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 - 2	
Ministry	3 696	3 841	4 186	4 056	3.1%	1.7%	4 558	4 868	5 150	8.3%	1.6%
Management	49 420	68 937	53 621	42 757	-4.7%	22.6%	50 173	49 378	54 913	8.7%	17.0%
Corporate Services	67 531	74 636	87 912	81 547	6.5%	32.8%	83 203	85 390	90 740	3.6%	29.4%
Office of the CFO	24 452	21 608	27 533	25 133	0.9%	10.4%	26 645	25 695	29 398	5.4%	9.2%
Office Accommodation	65 729	73 646	79 941	88 919	10.6%	32.5%	116 540	136 403	154 739	20.3%	42.8%
Total	210 828	242 668	253 193	242 412	4.8%	100.0%	281 119	301 734	334 940	11.4%	100.0%
Change to 2015				(1 600)			23 640	30 874	48 373		
Budget estimate											
Economic classification						1					
Current payments	205 206	171 587	176 748	235 014	4.6%	83.1%	273 721	294 005	326 763	11.6%	97.4%
Compensation of employees	71 812	80 502	89 501	91 684	8.5%	35.1%	100 424	98 636	109 647	6.1%	34.5%
Goods and services	133 394	91 085	87 152	143 330	2.4%	47.9%	173 297	195 369	217 116	14.8%	62.8%
of which:											
Administrative fees	1 209	2 258	327	539	-23.6%	0.5%	1 356	1 468	1 544	42.0%	0.4%
Advertising	427	1 256	800	2 002	67.4%	0.5%	861	901	953	-21.9%	0.4%
Minor assets	215	111	171	272	8.2%	0.1%	123	136	144	-19.1%	0.1%
Audit costs: External	5 345	4 776	8 140	6 350	5.9%	2.6%	5 140	5 397	5 710	-3.5%	1.9%
Bursaries: Employees	535	482	699	700	9.4%	0.3%	743	779	824	5.6%	0.3%
Catering: Departmental activities	332	1 147	491	587	20.9%	0.3%	721	786	831	12.3%	0.3%
Communication	4 709	5 067	5 047	3 564	-8.9%	1.9%	4 682	4 927	5 213	13.5%	1.6%
Computer services	2 233	4 671	8 361	7 965	52.8%	2.4%	6 151	6 458	6 833	-5.0%	2.4%
Consultants: Business and advisory services	1 103	1 301	612	1 281	5.1%	0.5%	1 185	1 307	1 383	2.6%	0.4%
Legal services	1 732	-		872	-20.4%	0.3%	1 100	1 159	1 227	12.1%	0.4%
Science and technological services	-	1 126	1 601		20.470	0.3%	-	1 105	1 221	12.170	0.470
Contractors	3 128	445	3 446	3 368	2.5%	1.1%	1 511	1 580	1 671	-20.8%	0.7%
	15 625	13 063	5 440 6 603	2 129	-48.5%	3.9%	6 820	6 146	6 502	-20.8% 45.1%	0.7% 1.9%
Agency and support/outsourced services	259					0.1%		206		45.1%	
Entertainment		271	72	160 2 640	-14.8%		181 1 781	206 1 693	218		0.1%
Fleet services (including government motor transport)	90	5 820	2 743	2 640	208.4%	1.2%	1 / 01	1 093	1 791	-12.1%	0.7%
Inventory: Fuel, oil and gas	9	-	-	-	-100.0%	-	-	-	-	-	-
Inventory: Materials and supplies	246	-	-	-	-100.0%	-	-	-	-	-	-
Consumable supplies	610	1 019	1 029	224	-28.4%	0.3%	736	793	839	55.3%	0.2%
Consumables: Stationery, printing and office supplies	1 689	236	996	1 102	-13.3%	0.4%	1 268	1 370	1 450	9.6%	0.4%
Operating leases	48 344	9 566	14 570	59 707	7.3%	13.9%	80 891	118 975	136 300	31.7%	34.1%
Rental and hiring	25	1 465	5 544	-	-100.0%	0.7%	-	-	-	-	-
Property payments	22 433	4 344	5 706	35 138	16.1%	7.1%	44 709	26 942	28 505	-6.7%	11.7%
Transport provided: Departmental activity	-	27 484	16 775	-	-	4.7%	-	-	-	-	-
Travel and subsistence	20 117	1 808	1 680	11 210	-17.7%	3.7%	8 837	9 876	10 448	-2.3%	3.5%
Training and development	1 839	2 237	938	2 229	6.6%	0.8%	2 573	2 702	2 859	8.7%	0.9%
Operating payments	864	1 098	796	916	2.0%	0.4%	1 506	1 285	1 360	14.1%	0.4%
Venues and facilities	276	34	5	375	10.8%	0.1%	418	483	511	10.9%	0.2%
Interest and rent on land	-	-	95	-	-	-	-	-	_	_	-
Transfers and subsidies	223	62 766	67 556	-	-100.0%	13.8%	-	-	-	_	-
Provinces and municipalities	-	-	1	-	-	-	_	-	_	_	-
Departmental agencies and accounts	14	62 473	64 446	-	-100.0%	13.4%	-	-	_	_	-
Households	209	293	3 109	_	-100.0%	0.4%	-	_	_	_	_
Payments for capital assets	5 349	8 289	8 586	7 398	11.4%	3.1%	7 398	7 729	8 177	3.4%	2.6%
Machinery and equipment	5 108	6 982	4 949	7 398	13.1%	2.6%	7 398	7 729	8 177	3.4%	2.6%
Heritage assets	45	0 902	4 343	1 390	-100.0%	2.0 /0	1 220		01//	3.4 %	2.0%
Software and other intangible assets	45 196	1 207	- 3 637	-	-100.0%	0.5%	-	-	-	-	_
0	1	1 307		-		0.5%	-	-	-	-	-
Payments for financial assets	50	26	303	-	-100.0%	400.00/	-	-	-	-	-
Total	210 828	242 668	253 193	242 412	4.8%	100.0%	281 119	301 734	334 940	11.4%	100.0%
Proportion of total programme expenditure to vote expenditure	7.9%	8.6%	7.3%	6.3%	-	-	6.9%	6.7%	7.4%	-	-

#### Table 37.6 Administration expenditure trends and estimates by subprogramme and economic classification

Details of transfers and subsidies				Adjusted	Average growth rate	Expen- diture/ Total: Average	Medium-te	erm expenditure	Average growth rate	Expen- diture/ Total: Average
_	Aud	lited outcom	e	appropriation	(%)	(%)	e	stimate	(%)	(%)
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2012/13	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18 2018/19	2015/16	- 2018/19
Households										
Other transfers to households										
Current	9	172	123	-	-100.0%	-	-		-	-
Employee social benefits	9	172	123	-	-100.0%	-	-			-
Departmental agencies and accounts										
Departmental agencies (non-business										
entities)										
Current	14	62 473	64 446	-	-100.0%	13.4%	-		-	-
Public Service Sector Education and	-	-	632	-	-	0.1%	-			-
Training Authority										
Communication	-	-	9	-	-	-	-			-
Gifts and donations	14	62	-	-	-100.0%	-	-			-
Office accommodation	-	62 411	63 805	-	-	13.3%	-			-
Households										
Social benefits										
Current	200	121	2 986	-	-100.0%	0.3%	-		-	-
Employee social benefits	200	121	2 986	-	-100.0%	0.3%	-		-	-
Provinces and municipalities										
Provinces										
Provincial agencies and funds										
Current	-	-	1	-	-	-	-		-	-
Vehicle licences	-	-	1	-	-	-	-			-

#### **Personnel information**

Table 37.7 Administration personnel numbers and cost by salary level<sup>1</sup> prior to Cabinet approved reduction, effective from 2017/18<sup>2</sup>; budget reductions and aggregate baseline total

	<u> </u>			00	<u> </u>														
		per of posts mated for																	
		larch 2016			Nicco					filled / m	اممسمط			- h  ; - h m				Num	nber
	-				NUN	nber and c	051-01	personi	iel posts	nnea / p	lanned	for on fur	ided est	ablishin	ient				
	Number	Number																Average	Salary
	of	of posts																growth	evel/Total:
	funded	additional																rate	Average
	posts	to the		Actual		Revis	sed esti	mate			Medi	um-term e	expendit	ure est	imate			(%)	(%)
		establishment							2	016/17		2	017/18		2	018/19		2015/16	- 2018/19
					Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit		
Administratio	n		Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost		
Salary level	206	26	183	89.5	0.5	206	92.9	0.5	206	100.4	0.5	206	106.8	0.5	206	120.8	0.6	-	100.0%
1 – 6	46	13	40	7.1	0.2	46	6.7	0.1	46	7.2	0.2	46	7.7	0.2	46	8.7	0.2	-	22.3%
7 – 10	95	5	80	27.2	0.3	95	32.8	0.3	95	35.4	0.4	95	37.7	0.4	95	42.3	0.4	-	46.1%
11 – 12	40	3	37	24.2	0.7	40	25.7	0.6	40	27.6	0.7	40	29.5	0.7	40	33.3	0.8	-	19.4%
13 – 16	23	5	24	24.2	1.0	23	23.5	1.0	23	25.6	1.1	23	27.0	1.2	23	30.7	1.3	-	11.2%
Other	2	-	2	6.8	3.4	2	4.2	2.1	2	4.6	2.3	2	4.9	2.4	2	5.8	2.9	-	1.0%
Reduction	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	(8.1)	-	-	(11.2)	-	-	-
Total	206	26	183	89.5	0.5	206	92.9	0.5	206	100.4	0.5	-	98.6	-	-	109.6	-	-	-
1 Data has ha	and a manufal	ad by the depart	and and and a							4									

1. Data has been provided by the department and may not necessarily reconcile with official government personnel data.

 This programme's compensation of employees budget has been reduced by R19.3 million for 2017/18 and 2018/19. After consultation with the Department of Public Service and Administration and National Treasury, the department will finalise, develop and implement a plan to manage its personnel expenditure within this reduced expenditure ceiling.

3. Rand million.

## **Programme 2: Institutional Governance**

#### Programme purpose

Coordinate and manage all cross-cutting functions of the department and its public entities. Provide support and oversight to public entities.

#### **Objectives**

- Drive integrated and joint outcomes based monitoring and evaluation across the arts, culture and heritage sector to ensure that the sector achieves its developmental objectives by:
  - signing annual shareholder compacts with all the department's public entities
  - hosting 12 governance forums between the department and its public entities by March 2017.

- Promote nation building and social cohesion through targeted engagements, dialogues and interactions with stakeholders and society by supporting 20 public platforms that advocate social cohesion per year over the medium term.
- Develop and sustain a positive image of South Africa's rich and diverse arts, culture and heritage across the continent and internationally by hosting and implementing 6 cultural seasons, including the annual Africa Month programme and a season with Russia in 2016/17; and 12 Africa projects over the medium term including provincial workshops on the Charter for African Cultural Renaissance, participation in the Buyel'Ekhaya Pan African Music Festival and the New Partnership for Africa's Development arts and education programme in 2016/17.
- Coordinate and manage arts, culture and heritage infrastructure that supports local, regional, national and international arts, culture and heritage offerings by:
  - developing and maintaining the annual user asset management plan
  - building 3 new community arts centres and refurbishing 25 existing centres over the medium term.

#### Subprogrammes

- *International Co-operation* assists in building continental and international relations for the promotion and development of South African arts, culture and heritage.
- Social Cohesion and Nation Building is responsible for the implementation of the national social cohesion strategy and the mainstreaming of targeted groups in arts, culture and heritage, including arts and culture in schools. It is also responsible for the coordination of nation building and social cohesion (outcome 14), in line with government's 2014-2019 medium term strategic framework.
- *Coordination, Monitoring, Evaluation and Good Governance* provides sector wide monitoring and evaluation, and coordinates the institutional development and governance of arts and culture public entities.
- *Capital Works* funds and administers capital allocations for the construction and maintenance of heritage infrastructure, new commemorative structures under national legacy projects, and grants for maintenance and other capital projects. Funds are awarded annually based on entity business plans.

#### Expenditure trends and estimates

Table 37.8 Institutional Governance expenditure trends and estimates by subprogramme and economic classification

Subprogramme					Average growth	Expen- diture/ Total:				Average growth	Expen- diture/ Total:
				Adjusted	rate	•	Medium	n-term expend	liture		Average
	Audi	ted outcome	;	appropriation	(%)	(%)		estimate		(%)	(%)
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2012/13	- 2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16	2018/19
International Co-operation	31 425	37 368	33 524	38 180	6.7%	13.1%	37 793	39 923	42 789	3.9%	9.2%
Social Cohesion and Nation Building	49 196	35 349	38 732	48 795	-0.3%	16.1%	50 864	52 993	55 792	4.6%	12.1%
Coordination, Monitoring, Evaluation and Good Governance	8 378	9 654	9 382	16 933	26.4%	4.1%	19 020	18 289	21 089	7.6%	4.4%
Capital Works	27 266	213 865	180 124	293 650	120.8%	66.7%	256 752	330 601	403 325	11.2%	74.4%
Total	116 265	296 236	261 762	397 558	50.7%	100.0%	364 429	441 806	522 995	9.6%	100.0%
Change to 2015				(26 500)			(31 518)	22 810	79 695		
Budget estimate											

#### Table 37.8 Institutional Governance expenditure trends and estimates by subprogramme and economic classification

Table 37.8 Institutional Govern	lance expen	ulture trend	is and es	limates by	Suppre	-	e anu eu	Conomic	Classill	Callon	_
Economic classification				Adjusted	Average growth rate	Expen- diture/ Total: Average	Medium	-term expen	diture	Average growth rate	Expen- diture/ Total: Average
-		dited outcome		appropriation	(%)	(%)		estimate		(%)	(%)
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16		- 2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 - 2	
Current payments	67 891	65 101	59 927	74 331	3.1%	24.9%	81 155	80 778	94 604	8.4%	19.2%
Compensation of employees	20 623	23 517	26 687	30 622	14.1%	9.5%	35 832	35 607	39 453	8.8%	8.2%
Goods and services	47 268	41 584	33 240	43 709	-2.6%	15.5%	45 323	45 171	55 151	8.1%	11.0%
of which:											
Administrative fees	2 080	952	158	285	-48.4%	0.3%	403	431	442	15.8%	0.1%
Advertising	2 124	9	210	700	-30.9%	0.3%	1 203	1 089	1 152	18.1%	0.2%
Minor assets	29	-	8	234	100.6%	-	42	45	43	-43.1%	-
Catering: Departmental activities	268	947	618	1 516	78.2%	0.3%	1 686	1 878	1 769	5.3%	0.4%
Communication	1 601	1 420	1 569	1 767	3.3%	0.6%	1 807	1 925	2 054	5.1%	0.4%
Computer services	-	1 308	-	-	-	0.1%	-	-	-	-	-
Consultants: Business and advisory	259	368	42	8 250	217.0%	0.8%	8 025	7 855	8 407	0.6%	1.9%
services											
Legal services	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	-
Contractors	20 428	9 731	10 278	2 529	-50.2%	4.0%	2 062	1 966	3 142	7.5%	0.6%
Agency and support/outsourced services	9 283	10 663	8 187	6 811	-9.8%	3.3%	9 857	7 507	9 754	12.7%	2.0%
Entertainment	9	23	17	24	38.7%	-	18	18	18	-9.1%	-
Inventory: Fuel, oil and gas	5	-	-	-	-100.0%	-	-	-	-	-	-
Inventory: Materials and supplies	59	-	-	-	-100.0%	-	-	-	-	-	-
Consumable supplies	71	625	30	48	-12.2%	0.1%	2	2	2	-65.3%	-
Consumables: Stationery, printing and	216	167	75	273	8.1%	0.1%	411	389	418	15.3%	0.1%
office supplies											
Operating leases	-	141	130	141	-	-	752	812	874	83.7%	0.1%
Rental and hiring	-	119	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Property payments	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	5 000	-	0.3%
Transport provided: Departmental activity	-	-	9 963	-	-	0.9%	-	-	-	-	-
Travel and subsistence	9 946	13 332	290	18 976	24.0%	4.0%	16 810	19 118	19 904	1.6%	4.3%
Training and development	-	-	611	170	-	0.1%	-	-	-	-100.0%	-
Operating payments	209	521	1 016	865	60.6%	0.2%	492	705	717	-6.1%	0.2%
Venues and facilities	681	1 258	38	1 120	18.0%	0.3%	1 753	1 430	1 455	9.1%	0.3%
Transfers and subsidies	21 099	148 333	154 840	86 577	60.1%	38.3%	37 225	73 803	155 999	21.7%	20.5%
Departmental agencies and accounts	-	76 951	35 097	-	-	10.5%	-	-	-	-	-
Foreign governments and international organisations	-	1 915	2 027	2 497	-	0.6%	2 403	2 708	2 865	4.7%	0.6%
Public corporations and private enterprises	-	54 112	79 457	54 000	-	17.5%	5 000	40 800	120 200	30.6%	12.7%
Non-profit institutions	3 833	-	32 603	21 212	76.9%	5.4%	20 484	20 489	22 559	2.1%	4.9%
Households	17 266	15 355	5 656	8 868	-19.9%	4.4%	9 338	9 806	10 375	5.4%	2.2%
Payments for capital assets	27 266	82 802	46 987	236 650	105.5%	36.7%	246 049	287 225	272 392	4.8%	60.4%
Buildings and other fixed structures	27 266	82 802	45 023	233 650	104.6%	36.3%	239 849	276 755	248 125	2.0%	57.8%
Machinery and equipment	-	-	138	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Heritage assets	-	-	1 826	-	-	0.2%	-	-	-	-	-
Software and other intangible assets	-	-	-	3 000	-	0.3%	6 200	10 470	24 267	100.7%	2.5%
Payments for financial assets	9	-	8	-	-100.0%	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total	116 265	296 236	261 762	397 558	50.7%	100.0%	364 429	441 806	522 995	9.6%	100.0%
Proportion of total programme expenditure to vote expenditure	4.4%	10.6%	7.6%	10.4%	-	-	9.0%	9.8%	11.5%	-	-
Details of transfers and subsidies				-							
Households											
Other transfers to households											
Current	17 265	45 250	E 664	0 0 0 0	-19.9%	4.4%	9 338	0 906	40.275	E 40/	2.20/
F		15 350	5 651	8 868				9 806	10 375	5.4%	2.2%
Arts and youth development	17 265	15 350	5 651	8 868	-19.9%	4.4%	9 338	9 806	10 375	5.4%	2.2%
Departmental agencies and accounts											
Departmental agencies (non-business											
entities)											
Capital	-	76 951	35 097	-	-	10.5%	-	-	-	-	-
Heritage legacy projects	-	76 951	35 097	-	-	10.5%	-	-	-		_
Households											
Social benefits											
Current	1	5	5	-	-100.0%	-	-	-	-	-	-
Employee social benefits	1	5	5	-	-100.0%	-	-	-	-	-	_
									1		

#### Table 37.8 Institutional Governance expenditure trends and estimates by subprogramme and economic classification

Details of transfers and subsidies	•			Adjusted	Average growth rate	Expen- diture/ Total: Average		n-term expe		Average growth rate	Expen- diture/ Total: Average
		lited outcome		appropriation	(%)	(%)		estimate		(%)	(%)
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2012/13	- 2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16	- 2018/19
Foreign governments and international											
organisations		4 6 4 5	0.007	0.407		0.00/	0 400	0 700	0.005	4 70/	0.00/
Current	-	1 915	2 027	2 497	-	0.6%	2 403	2 708	2 865	4.7%	0.6%
Commonwealth Foundation	-	1 915	2 027	2 497	-	0.6%	2 403	2 708	2 865	4.7%	0.6%
Non-profit institutions											
Current	3 833	-	12 393	18 212	68.1%	3.2%	18 984	19 750	20 809	4.5%	4.5%
Various institutions	-	-	9 393	15 872	-	2.4%	13 134	13 890	14 812	-2.3%	3.3%
Gcwala-Ngamasiko Cultural Festival	-	-	1 000	2 340	-	0.3%	2 350	2 360	2 497	2.2%	0.6%
Kauru African contemporary art touring exhibition	3 833	-	2 000	-	-100.0%	0.5%	-	-	-	-	-
Moral Regeneration Movement	-	-	-	-	-	-	3 500	3 500	3 500	-	0.6%
Capital	-	-	20 210	3 000	-	2.2%	1 500	739	1 750	-16.4%	0.4%
Die Erfenisstigting	-	-	4 192	-	-	0.4%	-	-	-	-	-
Adams College	-	-	4 561	-	-	0.4%	-	489	-	-	-
Voortrekker Monument	-	-	357	-	-	-	1 500	250	1 750	-	0.2%
Liliesleaf Farm	-	-	10 600	-	-	1.0%	-	-	-	-	-
Valoyi Traditional Authority Trust	-	-	500	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Origins Centre	-	-	-	3 000	-	0.3%	-	-	-	-100.0%	0.2%
Public corporations and private enterprises											
Public corporations											
Other transfers to public corporations											
Current	-	-	1 489	-	-	0.1%	-	-	-	-	-
Various institutions	_	-	1 489	_	-	0.1%	-	-	-	-	-
Capital	-	-	-	54 000	_	5.0%	5 000	40 800	120 200	30.6%	12.7%
Bram Fischer House	_	-	-	2 000	-	0.2%	-	-	-	-100.0%	0.1%
National Heritage Monument	_	-	-	52 000	-	4.9%	5 000	40 800	120 200	32.2%	12.6%
Public corporations and private enterprises											
Private enterprises											
Other transfers to private enterprises											
Capital	-	54 112	77 968	-	_	12.3%	_	_	_	_	_
Heritage legacy projects	_	54 112	77 968		-	12.3%	-	-	-	_	_

#### Personnel information

Table 37.9 Institutional Governance personnel numbers and cost by salary level<sup>1</sup> prior to Cabinet approved reduction, effective from 2017/18<sup>2</sup>; budget reductions and aggregate baseline total

		per of posts mated for																	
		arch 2016			N	lumber and	l cost <sup>3</sup> of	f person	nel posts	filled / pl	anned f	or on funde	d establ	ishmen	t			Nur	nber
	Number	Number																Average	Salary
	of	of posts																5	level/total:
	funded	additional		Actual		Bavi	sed estir				Mad		vn en dite		n ata			rate (%)	Average
	posts	to the establishment	2	Actual 014/15			<u>seu esur</u> 015/16	nate	2	016/17	wea	ium-term e	2017/18	ire estir		018/19		()	<u>(%)</u> - 2018/19
				014/10	Unit	-	010/10	Unit	-	010/11	Unit	20	/1//10	Unit	-	010/15	Unit	2013/10	- 2010/13
Institutional G	overnance		Number	Cost		Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost		Number	Cost	Cost		
Salary level	61	5	45	26.7	0.6	61	33.1	0.5	61	35.8	0.6	61	38.0	0.6	61	43.1	0.7	-	100.0%
1 – 6	5	5	-	-	-	5	0.2	0.0	5	0.2	0.0	5	0.2	0.0	5	0.4	0.1	-	8.2%
7 – 10	20	-	13	3.7	0.3	20	6.4	0.3	20	6.9	0.3	20	7.3	0.4	20	8.2	0.4	-	32.8%
11 – 12	23	-	20	11.6	0.6	23	14.1	0.6	23	15.2	0.7	23	16.2	0.7	23	18.2	0.8	-	37.7%
13 – 16	13	-	12	11.4	0.9	13	12.4	1.0	13	13.6	1.0	13	14.3	1.1	13	16.3	1.3	-	21.3%
Reduction	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	(2.4)	-	-	(3.6)	-	-	-
Total	61	5	45	26.7	0.6	61	33.1	0.5	61	35.8	0.6	-	35.6	-	-	39.5	-	-	-
1. Data has bee	en provided	by the departme	nt and may	not neces	ssarily re	econcile wit	h official	governm	ent person	nel data.									

2. This programme's compensation of employees budget has been reduced by R6.1 million for 2017/18 and 2018/19. After consultation with the Department of Public Service and Administration and National Treasury, the department will finalise, develop and implement a plan to manage its personnel expenditure within this reduced expenditure ceiling.
 3. Rand million.

# **Programme 3: Arts and Culture Promotion and Development**

#### Programme purpose

Promote and develop arts, culture and languages.

#### Objectives

- Promote arts and culture through investment in programmes that support and enable local content and development; support programmes that produce local content, such as films; and create specific transformation targets, over the medium term.
- Develop cultural and creative industries through interventions and initiatives that stimulate increased audiences and local content by:
  - providing ongoing support to flagship cultural events such as the Cape Town International Jazz Festival, the Joy of Jazz festival, the National Arts Festival and the Mangaung African Cultural Festival
  - supporting 8 key touring productions and exhibitions per year
  - implementing 20 public art development programmes per year.
- Position the sector as a contributor to economic growth by:
  - establishing 12 new performing arts incubator programmes and supporting the 6 established incubators that support the development of arts and culture entrepreneurs over the medium term
  - creating 15 000 part time job opportunities across all work streams of the Mzansi golden economy strategy by March 2017.
- Develop and maintain arts, culture and heritage infrastructure that supports local, regional, national and international arts and culture offerings by refurbishing 10 community arts centres by March 2017.
- Increase participation in and access to arts and culture by implementing programmes in 350 community art centres by March 2018.
- Promote the use of marginalised official languages by supporting the implementation of the Use of Official Languages Act (2012) and work with all national departments over the medium term in establishing language policy units as per the act.

#### Subprogrammes

- *National Language Services* promotes the use and equal status of all official languages. This entails the review of the national language policy, the development of language terminologies and human language technology, translation and publishing services in all official languages, and the awarding of bursaries.
- *Pan South African Language Board* transfers funds to the Pan South African Language Board, which creates an environment that is conducive to developing, using and promoting all official languages, as well as the Khoi, Nama and San languages and South African sign language.
- *Cultural and Creative Industries Development* implements the majority of projects for the Mzansi golden economy strategy and supports the creative industries by developing strategies, implementing sector development programmes, supporting projects and providing training.
- *Performing Arts Institutions* transfers funds to performing arts institutions, which provide a platform for the artistic and cultural expression of artists and those interested in performing arts.
- *National Film and Video Foundation* transfers funds to the National Film and Video Foundation in support of skills, local content, and local marketing development in South Africa's film and video industry.
- *National Arts Council* transfers funds to the National Arts Council, which develops and financially supports various disciplines of arts and culture, in accordance with the National Arts Council Act (1997).
- *Capital Works of Performing Arts Institutions* funds and administers capital grants to playhouses for maintenance and other capital projects.

## Expenditure trends and estimates

Table 37.10 Arts and Culture Promotion and Development expenditure trends and estimates by subprogramme and economic classification

Subprogramme				Adjusted	Average growth rate	Expen- diture/ Total: Average		-term expe	nditure	Average growth rate	Expen- diture/ Total: Average
R thousand	Auc 2012/13	dited outcome 2013/14	2014/15	appropriation 2015/16	(%) 2012/13 ·	(%)	2016/17	estimate 2017/18	2018/19	(%) 2015/16 ·	(%)
National Language Services	38 326	38 936	43 483	45 885	6.2%	4.4%	48 508	48 677	49 359	2015/16	4.3%
Pan South African Language Board	69 480	38 930 95 680	43 463 83 497	45 885 87 338	7.9%	4.4 % 8.9%	48 508 91 967	46 077 96 565	49 359	2.3% 5.4%	4.3%
Cultural and Creative Industries	197 601	267 298	343 731	343 243	20.2%	30.5%	356 947	371 106	394 477	4.7%	32.6%
Development	197 001	207 290	343731	343 243	20.270	30.5%	550 947	3/1 100	394 477	4.770	32.0%
Performing Arts Institutions	334 159	293 697	286 835	329 265	-0.5%	32.9%	326 704	336 967	323 517	-0.6%	29.2%
National Film and Video Foundation	86 442	105 223	147 619	116 721	10.5%	12.1%	122 907	129 052	136 537	5.4%	11.2%
National Arts Council	87 527	87 554	91 865	96 089	3.2%	9.6%	101 182	106 241	112 403	5.4%	9.2%
Capital Works of Performing Arts	_	_	1 000	57 683	-	1.6%	46 492	51 906	72 282	7.8%	5.1%
Institutions									-		
Total	813 535	888 388	998 030	1 076 224	9.8%	100.0%	1 094 707	1 140 514	1 190 741	3.4%	100.0%
Change to 2015							(26 462)	(42 135)	(60 503)		
Budget estimate											
Economic classification											
Current payments	110 920	141 563	144 001	197 913	21.3%	15.7%	113 722	136 206	132 462	-12.5%	12.9%
Compensation of employees	37 539	39 560	41 404	48 068	8.6%	4.4%	48 712	48 262	50 315	1.5%	4.3%
Goods and services	73 381	102 003	102 594	149 845	26.9%	11.3%	65 010	87 944	82 147	-18.2%	8.6%
of which:											
Administrative fees	1 060	893	149	40	-66.5%	0.1%	194	353	376	111.0%	-
Advertising	3 088	355	11 707	6 191	26.1%	0.6%	5 173	8 443	8 932	13.0%	0.6%
Minor assets	50	1	11	92	22.5%	-	123	104	110	6.1%	-
Catering: Departmental activities	249	175	597	1 231	70.4%	0.1%	124	130	138	-51.8%	-
Communication	756	1 217	872	1 047	11.5%	0.1%	580	608	655	-14.5%	0.1%
Computer services	-	-	-	338	-	-	328	346	366	2.7%	-
Consultants: Business and advisory services	245	2 556	2 926	22 910	353.9%	0.8%	22 053	34 029	12 443	-18.4%	2.0%
Legal services	1 409	35	-	2 742	24.8%	0.1%	1 308	1 565	1 499	-18.2%	0.2%
Science and technological services	-	168	2 206	-	-	0.1%	-	-	-	-	-
Contractors	20 403	9 022	41 946	50 377	35.2%	3.2%	1 311	1 765	1 867	-66.7%	1.2%
Agency and support/outsourced services	36 883	70 942	29 191	40 495	3.2%	4.7%	18 338	25 105	39 772	-0.6%	2.7%
Entertainment	34	20	13	18	-19.1%	-	14	14	14	-8.0%	-
Consumable supplies	34	53	7	3	-55.5%	-	1	5	9	44.2%	-
Consumables: Stationery, printing and office supplies	447	104	95	509	4.4%	-	375	391	413	-6.7%	-
Operating leases	-	-	144	472	-	-	796	837	885	23.3%	0.1%
Transport provided: Departmental activity	-	14 194	9 182	-	-	0.6%	-	-	-	-	-
Travel and subsistence	7 322	1 037	31	19 183	37.9%	0.7%	13 425	13 359	13 705	-10.6%	1.3%
Training and development	129	213	1 460	-	-100.0%	-	66	69	73	-	-
Operating payments	231	387	2 057	2 743	128.1%	0.1%	101	87	113	-65.5%	0.1%
Venues and facilities	1 041	631	-	1 454	11.8%	0.1%	700	734	777	-18.9%	0.1%
Interest and rent on land	-	-	3	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Transfers and subsidies	702 596	737 724	853 912	878 311	7.7%	84.0%	980 985	1 004 308	1 058 279	6.4%	87.1%
Provinces and municipalities	-	11 500	3 500	-	-	0.4%	-	-	-	-	-
Departmental agencies and accounts	571 156	576 350	617 406	629 765	3.3%	63.4%	697 507	741 169	764 777	6.7%	62.9%
Higher education institutions	-	_	570	-	_	_	-	_	_	_	-
Public corporations and private enterprises	-	-	73 875	113 879	-	5.0%	141 238	124 969	149 882	9.6%	11.8%
Non-profit institutions	6 538	95 569	146 907	123 507	166.3%	9.9%	129 259	122 608	124 906	0.4%	11.1%
Households	124 902	54 305	11 654	11 160	-55.3%	5.3%	12 981	15 562	18 714	18.8%	1.3%
Payments for capital assets		9 082	81	-	_	0.2%	-	-	-	-	-
Buildings and other fixed structures	_	-	81	-	-		-	-	_	_	-
Software and other intangible assets	_	9 082	-	_	_	0.2%	_	_	_	_	_
Payments for financial assets	19	19	36	-	-100.0%	5.270	_	-	_	-	-
Total	813 535	888 388	998 030	1 076 224	9.8%	100.0%		1 140 514	1 190 741	3.4%	100.0%
Proportion of total programme expenditure to vote expenditure	30.6%	31.7%	28.9%	28.1%	-	-	26.9%	25.4%	26.2%	- 3.47	-

# Table 37.10 Arts and Culture Promotion and Development expenditure trends and estimates by subprogramme and economic classification

Details of transfers and subsidies	٨	lited outcome		Adjusted appropriation	Average growth rate (%)	Expen- diture/ Total: Average (%)		term experestimate	nditure	Average growth rate (%)	Expen- diture/ Total: Average (%)
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2012/13		2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16	
Households	2012/10	2010/14	2014/10	2010/10	2012/10	2010/10	2010/11	2011/10	2010/13	2010/10	2010/13
Other transfers to households											
Current	124 902	54 302	11 625	11 160	-55.3%	5.3%	12 981	15 562	18 714	18.8%	1.3%
	9 803	12 506	7 789	8 860	-3.3%	1.0%	9 481	11 062	13 214	14.3%	0.9%
Language development projects Visual and performing arts projects	32 940	24 805	1109	0 000	-100.0%	1.0%	9401	11002	15 2 14	14.3 %	0.9%
Cultural industries	52 940 63 659	24 805 9 161	-	-			-	-	-	-	-
		9 101	-	-	-100.0%	1.9%	-	-	-	-	-
2013 Africa Cup of Nations	18 500	-	-	-	-100.0%	0.5%	-	-	-	-	-
2014 African Nations Championship	-	7 000	-	-	-	0.2%	-	_	-	-	
Mzansi golden economy: Public art	-	830	830	800	-	0.1%	500	500	500	-14.5%	0.1%
Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Cultural events	-	-	711	-	-	-	1 000	1 500	1 500	-	0.1%
Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Touring ventures	-	-	1 214	1 500	-	0.1%	1 000	1 000	2 000	10.1%	0.1%
Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Export market development and promotion	-	-	-	-	-	-	1 000	1 500	1 500	-	0.1%
Arts and culture industries: Local market development and promotion	-	-	1 081	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Departmental agencies and accounts											
Departmental agencies (non-business											
entities)											
Current	434 044	492 100	552 954	531 321	7.0%	53.2%	609 452	665 399	713 377	10.3%	56.0%
Gifts and donations	86	64	-	-	-100.0%	_	-	_	-	-	-
Pan South African Language Board	69 480	95 680	83 497	87 338	7.9%	8.9%	91 967	96 565	102 166	5.4%	8.4%
Artscape	44 985	47 821	50 755	54 690	6.7%	5.3%	55 904	58 699	62 107	4.3%	5.1%
The Market Theatre	24 611	26 196	27 810	30 789	7.8%	2.9%	30 631	32 163	34 028	3.4%	2.8%
National Arts Council	87 527	87 554	91 865	96 089	3.2%	9.6%	101 182	106 241	112 403	5.4%	9.2%
Performing Arts Centre of the Free State	33 250	35 487	37 690	41 024	7.3%	3.9%	41 513	47 589	46 117	4.0%	3.9%
The Playhouse Company	38 488	40 570	43 085	41 176	2.3%	4.3%	41 165	49 838	52 729	8.6%	4.1%
The South African State Theatre	39 706	42 393	45 028	48 699	7.0%	4.7%	49 595	52 075	55 095	4.2%	4.6%
Windybrow Theatre	9 469	10 082	10 703	12 795	10.6%	1.1%	11 788	12 377	13 095	0.8%	1.1%
	86 442	105 223	147 588	12 793	10.0%	12.1%	122 907	12 377	136 537	5.4%	11.2%
National Film and Video Foundation	00 442			110721	10.5%					J.4 70	
Mzansi golden economy: Art bank resources	-	-	3 000	-	-	0.1%	6 000	8 000	10 000	-	0.5%
Mzansi golden economy: Public art	_	1 030	500	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Cultural events	-	-	5 500	-	-	0.1%	13 500	13 500	13 500	-	0.9%
Various institutions: Mzansi golden	-	-	3 733	-	-	0.1%	7 000	10 000	7 000	-	0.5%
economy: Touring ventures Various institutions: Mzansi golden	-	-	2 200	-	-	0.1%	1 300	1 300	2 600	-	0.1%
economy: Artists in schools Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Export market development and promotion	-	-	-	2 000	-	0.1%	7 000	10 000	7 000	51.8%	0.6%
Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Entrepreneur and local content development	-	-	-	-	-	-	20 000	30 000	50 000	-	2.2%
Performing arts institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Incubators entrepreneur and local content development	-	-	-	-	-	-	8 000	8 000	9 000	-	0.6%

# Table 37.10 Arts and Culture Promotion and Development expenditure trends and estimates by subprogramme and economic classification

classification						_					
Details of transfers and subsidies				Adjusted	Average growth	Expen- diture/ Total:	Madium t		dituro	Average growth	Expen- diture/ Total:
	Audit	ed outcom	e	Adjusted appropriation	rate (%)	Average (%)		erm expen stimate	alture	rate (%)	Average (%)
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2012/13 -		2016/17	2017/18	2018/19		- 2018/19
Capital	137 112	84 250	64 452	98 444	-10.5%	10.2%	88 055	75 770	51 400	-19.5%	7.0%
Artscape: Capital works projects The South Africa State Theatre: Capital works projects	43 963 9 750	45 650 9 774	- 20 052	14 758 16 744	-30.5% 19.8%	2.8% 1.5%	14 750 4 800	29 000 4 000	15 000 4 000	0.5% -38.0%	1.6% 0.7%
The Playhouse Company: Capital works projects	25 800	2 000	24 400	12 500	-21.5%	1.7%	13 818	1 770	1 900	-46.6%	0.7%
Performing Arts Centre of the Free State: Capital works projects	15 681	4 362	5 000	24 442	15.9%	1.3%	30 000	20 000	10 500	-24.5%	1.9%
The Market Theatre: Capital works projects	22 206	22 464	15 000	14 000	-14.3%	2.0%	24 687	21 000	20 000	12.6%	1.8%
Windybrow Theatre: Capital works projects National Arts Council: Capital works projects	19 712	-	-	10 000 1 000	-20.2%	0.8%	-	-	-	-100.0% -100.0%	0.2%
National Film and Video Foundation: Capital Works	-	-	-	5 000	-	0.1%	-	-	_	-100.0%	0.1%
Projects Households											
Social benefits											
Current	-	3	29	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Employee social benefits	-	3	29	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Provinces and municipalities											
Provinces Provincial agencies and funds											
Current	-	11 500	3 500	-	-	0.4%	-	-	-	-	-
Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Cultural events	-	11 500	3 500	-	-	0.4%	-	-	-	-	-
Non-profit institutions Current	6 538	95 569	146 907	123 507	166.3%	9.9%	129 259	122 608	124 906	0.4%	11.1%
Business and Arts South Africa	6 538	6 898	7 312	7 648	5.4%	0.8%	8 053	8 456	8 946	5.4%	0.7%
Human languages technologies projects			1 208		-	-	1 000	1 000		-	-
Mzansi golden economy: Public art	-	6 520	6 990	-	-	0.4%	3 000	4 500	4 000	-	0.3%
Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Cultural events	-	81 511	98 382	53 071	-	6.2%	64 000	49 700	48 400	-3.0%	4.8%
Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Touring ventures	-	640	10 096	13 000	-	0.6%	3 000	7 500	8 000	-14.9%	0.7%
Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: National Cultural Industries Skills Academy	-	-	-	1 757	-	-	15 069	16 599	17 300	114.3%	1.1%
Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Artists in schools	-	-	4 000	-	-	0.1%	9 400	12 400	12 800	-	0.8%
Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Community arts development	-	-	-	5 500	-	0.1%	-	1 366	5 000	-3.1%	0.3%
Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Export market development and promotion	-	-	-	8 000	-	0.2%	2 800	4 000	2 500	-32.1%	0.4%
Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Entrepreneur and local content development	-	-	-	12 000	-	0.3%	1 000	1 000	1 000	-56.3%	0.3%
Arts and culture industries: Local market development and promotion	-	-	18 919	16 531	-	0.9%	13 937	9 000	10 000	-15.4%	1.1%
Arts and culture industries: Community arts development				6 000		0.2%	8 000	7 087	6 960	5.1%	0.6%
Public corporations and private enterprises Public corporations											
Other transfers to public corporations											
Current	-	-	71 355	52 696	-	3.3%	94 746	73 063	77 600	13.8%	6.6%
Human languages technologies projects	-	-	4 254	4 396	-	0.2%	4 114	3 263	3 000	-12.0%	0.3%
Mzansi golden economy: Public art Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Cultural	-	-	1 135 47 929	- 20 000	-	- 1.8%	1 000 63 032	1 000 36 000	1 000 37 000	- 22.8%	0.1% 3.5%
events Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Touring	-	_	9 381	5 000	-	0.4%	4 000	6 500	8 000	17.0%	0.5%
ventures Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: National	-	_	-	1 000	-	-	7 500	9 000	10 000	115.4%	0.6%
Cultural Industries Skills Academy Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Artists in	-	-	4 000	-	-	0.1%	1 300	1 300	2 600	-	0.1%
schools Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Export	-	-	-	10 000	-	0.3%	2 800	4 000	3 000	-33.1%	0.4%
market development and promotion Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy:	-	-	-	10 800	-	0.3%	5 000	3 000	3 000	-34.8%	0.5%
Entrepreneur and local content development Various institutions: Mzansi golden economy: 20 years of freedom	-	-	400	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Arts and culture industries: Local market development and promotion	-	-	4 256	-	-	0.1%	6 000	9 000	10 000	-	0.6%
Arts and culture industries: Entrepreneur and local content development	-	-	-	1 500	-	-	-	-	-	-100.0%	-
and the second sec											

# Table 37.10 Arts and Culture Promotion and Development expenditure trends and estimates by subprogramme and economic classification

Details of transfers and subsidies				Adjusted	Average growth rate	Total:	Medium-t	erm expen	nditure	Average growth rate	Expen- diture/ Total: Average
	Aud	ited outcom	ie	appropriation	(%)	(%)		stimate	luiture	(%)	(%)
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2012/13 -	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16	- 2018/19
Capital	-	-	1 000	51 683	-	1.4%	46 492	51 906	72 282	11.8%	4.9%
Various institutions	-	-	1 000	51 683	-	1.4%	46 492	51 906	72 282	11.8%	4.9%
Public corporations and private enterprises											
Private enterprises											
Other transfers to private enterprises											
Current	-	-	1 520	9 500	-	0.3%	-	-	-	-100.0%	0.2%
Arts and culture industries: Local market development and promotion	-	-	1 520	9 500	-	0.3%	-	-	-	-100.0%	0.2%
Higher education institutions											
Current	-	-	570	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Mzansi golden economy: Public art	-	-	480	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Various Institutions: Mzansi golden economy: Touring ventures	-	-	90	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-

### **Personnel information**

Table 37.11 Arts and Culture Promotion and Development personnel numbers and cost by salary level<sup>1</sup> prior to Cabinet approved reduction, effective from 2017/18<sup>2</sup> budget reductions and aggregate baseline total

		er of posts																	
		nated for																	
	31 Ma	arch 2016			Num	ber and c	ost <sup>3</sup> of p	personr	nel posts f	'illed / p	anned	for on fun	ded est	ablishm	nent			Nu	mber
	Number	Number																Average	Salary
	of	of posts																growth	level/total:
	funded	additional																rate	Average
	posts	to the		Actual		-	sed esti	mate			Medi	um-term e		ure esti				(%)	(%)
	establishment 2014/15 and Culture Promotion and					2	015/16		2	016/17		2	017/18		2	018/19		2015/16	5 - 2018/19
Arts and Cult	and Culture Promotion and				Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit		
Development	and Culture Promotion and lopment Number Cost			Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost			
Salary level	103	11	87	41.4	0.5	103	45.1	0.4	103	48.7	0.5	103	51.8	0.5	103	58.6	0.6	-	100.0%
1 – 6	13	10	3	0.6	0.2	13	1.1	0.1	13	1.2	0.1	13	1.3	0.1	13	1.6	0.1	-	12.6%
7 – 10	59	-	54	19.2	0.4	59	21.2	0.4	59	22.9	0.4	59	24.4	0.4	59	27.4	0.5	-	57.3%
11 – 12	21	-	20	12.1	0.6	21	13.1	0.6	21	14.1	0.7	21	15.1	0.7	21	17.0	0.8	-	20.4%
13 – 16	10	1	10	9.5	0.9	10	9.6	1.0	10	10.5	1.0	10	11.0	1.1	10	12.6	1.3	-	9.7%
Reduction	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	(3.5)	-	-	(8.3)	-	-	_
Total	103	11	87	41.4	0.5	103	45.1	0.4	103	48.7	0.5	-	48.3	-	-	50.3	-	-	-

1. Data has been provided by the department and may not necessarily reconcile with official government personnel data.

 This programme's compensation of employees budget has been reduced by R11.8 million for 2017/18 and 2018/19. After consultation with the Department of Public Service and Administration and National Treasury, the department will finalise, develop and implement a plan to manage its personnel expenditure within this reduced expenditure ceiling.

3. Rand million.

## **Programme 4: Heritage Promotion and Preservation**

#### Programme purpose

Preserve and promote South African heritage, archival and heraldic heritage, and fund libraries.

#### **Objectives**

- Promote a culture of reading and writing across society, and respect for oral knowledge and histories by:
  - distributing 410 000 items of library material per year
  - conducting 4 oral history projects annually.
- Initiate heritage infrastructure projects in rural and under-provisioned places that have multipurpose use for communities by constructing 3 new heritage structures over the medium term.
- Promote heritage and advance the socioeconomic inclusivity and contribution of the sector by using local labour and/or small to medium enterprises to service 1 new or 1 refurbished heritage site over the medium term.

#### Subprogrammes

- *Heritage Promotion* supports a range of heritage initiatives and projects, such as Heritage Month; the repatriation of South African culture and heritage objects; and the Bureau of Heraldry, which registers symbols, popularises national symbols through public awareness campaigns, and coordinates the national orders awards ceremony.
- *National Archive Services* acquires, preserves, manages, and makes accessible public and non-public records with enduring value.
- *Heritage Institutions* funds and determines policy for declared cultural institutions and heritage bodies by ensuring that funds to the institutions are used to preserve, research, protect, and promote heritage.
- *National Library Services* funds libraries and institutions, and develops related policy. The bulk of this subprogramme's budget is used for transfers to the National Library of South Africa, the South African Library for the Blind and Blind South Africa.
- *Public Library Services* transfers the community library services grant to provincial departments for constructing and upgrading libraries, hiring personnel and purchasing library materials.
- South African Heritage Resources Agency transfers funds to the South African Heritage Resources Agency, whose key strategic objectives are developing and implementing norms and standards for managing heritage resources.
- *South African Geographical Names Council* transfers funds to the South African Geographical Names Council, which is an advisory body that facilitates name changes by consulting with communities to advise the Minister of Arts and Culture.
- *National Heritage Council* transfers funds to the National Heritage Council, whose mandate involves enhancing knowledge production on heritage and ensuring the promotion and awareness of heritage.

#### Expenditure trends and estimates

# Table 37.12 Heritage Promotion and Preservation expenditure trends and estimates by subprogramme and economic classification

Subprogramme					Average growth	Expen- diture/ Total:				Average growth	Expen- diture/ Total:
				Adjusted	rate	Average	Mediu	m-term expe	nditure	rate	Average
-		ted outcome		appropriation	(%)	(%)		estimate		(%)	(%)
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2012/13 -		2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 -	
Heritage Promotion	71 439	75 462	109 802	86 998	6.8%	4.9%	87 346	92 340	96 373	3.5%	3.8%
National Archive Services	36 877	45 377	40 374	40 239	3.0%	2.3%	40 343	40 811	43 563	2.7%	1.7%
Heritage Institutions	406 669	464 047	546 480	462 934	4.4%	27.1%	579 708	702 583	533 066	4.8%	23.9%
National Library Services	89 803	91 874	103 016	105 694	5.6%	5.6%	123 411	177 466	139 762	9.8%	5.7%
Public Library Services	567 343	600 307	1 036 852	1 302 474	31.9%	50.5%	1 382 671	1 468 030	1 550 872	6.0%	59.8%
Capital Works	249 949	-	-	-	-100.0%	3.6%	-	-	-	-	-
South African Heritage Resources Agency	41 037	43 666	46 417	48 552	5.8%	2.6%	51 125	57 861	56 985	5.5%	2.2%
South African Geographical Names Council	5 525	4 850	2 393	4 487	-6.7%	0.2%	4 420	4 891	5 175	4.9%	0.2%
National Heritage Council	50 063	53 588	55 917	58 475	5.3%	3.1%	61 574	64 653	68 403	5.4%	2.7%
Total	1 518 705	1 379 171	1 941 251	2 109 853	11.6%	100.0%	2 330 598	2 608 635	2 494 199	5.7%	100.0%
Change to 2015 Budget estimate				(65 712)			1 798	134 102	(123 857)		
Economic classification											
Current payments	105 058	118 672	151 063	127 472	6.7%	7.2%	128 585	134 795	141 675	3.6%	5.6%
Compensation of employees	42 759	47 209	48 694	49 976	5.3%	2.7%	53 374	52 544	56 988	4.5%	2.2%
Goods and services	42 7 59 62 299	47 209 71 463	102 338	49 970	7.5%	2.7 % 4.5%	75 211	82 251	84 687	4.5%	3.3%
of which:	02 299	/1403	102 330	// 490	1.5%	4.5%	19211	02 201	04 007	3.0%	3.3%
Administrative fees	2 575	816	313	413	-45.7%	0.1%	245	253	268	-13.4%	
Advertising	2 575	2 681	1 668	2 006	-45.7%	0.1%	1 980	205	200	-13.4% 6.5%	0.1%
Auverusing Minor assets	2 7 90	2 007	22	2 006	-10.5%	0.1%	1960	2 220	2 420	6.5% 8.2%	0.1%
Audit costs: External	00	20	83	104	21.9%	-		221	233	0.270	-
	_ 1 320	692	1 989	681	-19.8%	0.1%	711	- 759		6.2%	-
Catering: Departmental activities Communication	1 643	1 614	1 772	1 251	-19.8%	0.1%	1 338	1 491	1 570	0.2 <i>%</i> 7.9%	0.1%
Computer services	855	1014	4 206	2 922	-0.7% 50.6%	0.1%	4 437	491	4 984	7.9% 19.5%	0.1%
	855 955		4 206 872	2 922	50.6% 8.0%	0.1%	4 437	4711 1682	4 964 1 779	19.5% 13.9%	0.2%
Consultants: Business and advisory services	900	947 534	0/2	2 010	0.0%	0.1%	2 320	2 430	2 513	7.7%	0.1%
Legal services	-	534	-	2010	-	-	2 320	2 430	2 513	1.1%	0.1%
Science and technological services	-	-	1 075	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-

# Table 37.12 Heritage Promotion and Preservation expenditure trends and estimates by subprogramme and economic classification

classification											
Economic classification				Adjusted	Average growth rate	Expen- diture/ Total: Average	Medium	-term exper	nditure	Average growth rate	Expen- diture/ Total: Average
	Auc	lited outcon	ne	appropriation	(%)	(%)		estimate		(%)	(%)
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2012/13 - 2	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 -	2018/19
Contractors	19 878	21 573	22 722	30 796	15.7%	1.4%	30 092	33 853	33 645	3.0%	1.3%
Agency and support/outsourced services	9 802	10 522	7 944	11 674	6.0%	0.6%	7 515	7 718	7 953	-12.0%	0.4%
Entertainment	13	18	19	12	-2.6%	-	12	12	12	-	-
Fleet services (including government motor transport)	-	-	22	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Inventory: Fuel, oil and gas	6	25	-	-	-100.0%	-	-	-	-	-	-
Inventory: Materials and supplies	9	-	-	-	-100.0%	-	-	-	-	-	-
Inventory: Other supplies	-	-	46 118	-	-	0.7%	-	-	-	-	-
Consumable supplies	111	8 170	516	5 227	261.1%	0.2%	5 680	6 246	6 498	7.5%	0.2%
Consumables: Stationery, printing and office	779	116	148	820	1.7%	-	1 476	1 602	1 749	28.7%	0.1%
supplies		2	140	020			000	075	4 000	7.00/	
Operating leases	-	3 476	148 21	838	-100.0%	-	929	975	1 032	7.2%	-
Rental and hiring	59	476 2 598	21	-	-100.0%	-	- 72	- 63	- 29	-	-
Property payments Transport provided: Departmental activity	_	2 390		-	-	0.2%	- 12	- 05	29	-	-
Travel and subsistence	16 758		10779	 14 886	-3.9%	0.2%	 14 684			4.6%	0.7%
Training and development	44	17 007	859	14 000	-3.9%	0.770	24	26	29	-33.8%	0.776
Operating payments	413	477	1 041	700	20.7%		947	899	993	-33.0%	
Venues and facilities	4 195	2 326	1 1	1 746	-25.3%	0.1%	932	1 059	1 132	-13.4%	0.1%
Interest and rent on land	-	- 2 020	31	-	- 20.070	-				-	-
Transfers and subsidies	1 413 586	1 258 288	1 790 050	1 982 381	11.9%	92.7%	2 202 013	2 473 840	2 352 524	5.9%	94.4%
Provinces and municipalities	564 574	594 786	1 016 210	1 274 314	31.2%	49.6%	1 357 132	1 440 760	1 522 020	6.1%	58.6%
Departmental agencies and accounts	831 186	646 512	755 093	684 040	-6.3%	42.0%		1 011 834	808 025	5.7%	34.9%
Foreign governments and international organisations	-	1 000	1 100	1 700	-	0.1%	1 300	1 365	1 444	-5.3%	0.1%
Non-profit institutions	6 335	6 683	13 548	17 280	39.7%	0.6%	13 603	14 283	15 112	-4.4%	0.6%
Households	11 491	9 307	4 099	5 047	-24.0%	0.4%	5 331	5 598	5 923	5.5%	0.2%
Payments for capital assets	-	2 185	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Software and other intangible assets	-	2 185	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Payments for financial assets	61	26	138	-	-100.0%	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total	1 518 705	1 379 171	1 941 251	2 109 853	11.6%	100.0%	2 330 598	2 608 635	2 494 199	5.7%	100.0%
Proportion of total programme	57.1%	49.1%	56.2%	55.1%	-	-	57.3%	58.1%	54.9%	-	-
expenditure to vote expenditure											
Details of transfers and subsidies											
Households											
Other transfers to households											
Current	11 491	9 307	3 664	5 047	-24.0%	0.4%	5 331	5 598	5 923	5.5%	0.2%
Heritage projects	11 028	8 458	2 550	5 047	-22.9%	0.4%	5 331	5 598	5 923	5.5%	0.2%
Projects that conserve archival material	463	849	1 114	_	-100.0%	-	-	-	-	-	-
Departmental agencies and accounts											
Departmental agencies (non-business entities)											
Current	520 084	553 782	599 929	622 207	6.2%	33.0%	651 611	893 046	737 474	5.8%	30.4%
Gifts and donations	-	18	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Die Afrikaanse Taalmuseum en Monument	4 581	4 963	5 308	5 597	6.9%	0.3%	5 894	7 189	6 545	5.4%	0.3%
Freedom Park: Pretoria	62 301	66 372	70 470	65 665	1.8%	3.8%	65 548	96 500	86 227	9.5%	3.3%
Iziko Museums (Cape Town)	57 672	61 515	65 331	68 336	5.8%	3.6%	71 958	89 556	79 938	5.4%	3.2%
Luthuli Museum (Stanger)	7 030	7 465	8 890	9 329	9.9%	0.5%	9 848	11 340	10 940	5.5%	0.4%
KwaZulu-Natal Museum (Pietermaritzburg)	15 325	16 359	17 376	18 175	5.9%	1.0%	19 138	24 595	21 261	5.4%	0.9%
National Heritage Council	50 063	53 588	55 917	58 475	5.3%	3.1%	61 574	64 653	68 403	5.4%	2.7%
National Museum (Bloemfontein)	35 098	38 415	41 085	43 333	7.3%	2.3%	45 630	97 912	50 691	5.4%	2.5%
Nelson Mandela Museum (Mthatha)	17 696	18 900	20 124	21 143	6.1%	1.1%	22 264	24 877	24 733	5.4%	1.0%
Robben Island Museum (Cape Town)	58 876	61 586	66 805	68 419	5.1%	3.7%	72 045	88 647	80 035	5.4%	3.2%
South African Heritage Resources Agency	41 037	43 666	46 417	48 552	5.8%	2.6%	51 125	57 861	56 985	5.5%	2.2%
National English Literary Museum (Grahamstown)	7 622	8 148	8 657	9 055	5.9%	0.5%	9 535	12 012	10 593	5.4%	0.4%
Voortrekker Museum (Pietermaritzburg)	10 529	11 236	11 935	12 484	5.8%	0.5%	13 146	14 803	10 595	5.4%	0.4%
		8 022		9 121							
War Museum of the Boer Republics (Bloemfontein)	7 789		8 613		5.4%	0.5%	9 604	21 084	10 669	5.4%	0.5%
William Humphreys Art Gallery (Kimberley)	5 271	5 613	5 960	6 234	5.8%	0.3%	6 564	7 892	7 292	5.4%	0.3%
Ditsong Museums of South Africa (Pretoria)	58 417	62 450	66 350	69 402	5.9%	3.7%	73 080	121 734	81 185	5.4%	3.6%
National Library of South Africa	66 198	69 838	84 077	91 511	11.4%	4.5%	96 361	133 179	107 047	5.4%	4.5%
South African Library for the Blind	14 579	15 626	16 612	17 376	6.0%	0.9%	18 297	19 212	20 326	5.4%	0.8%
Radio and television licences	-	2	2	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-

# Table 37.12 Heritage Promotion and Preservation expenditure trends and estimates by subprogramme and economic classification

Average of the function of the second seco	classification				1							
Audited outcome         appropriation         (%)         (%)         (%)         (%)         (%)           Capial         311102         92730         155146         61833         41.6%         92117- 201716         11878         70 551         45%         4           Masaums         24949         -         -         100.0%         32.6%         -         -         -         100.0%         32.6%         -         -         100.0%         32.6%         -         -         100.0%         32.6%         -         -         100.0%         32.6%         -         -         0.00.0%         32.6%         -         -         0.00.0%         32.6%         -         -         0.00.0%         0.00.0%         -         -         -         -         0.00.0%         32.6%         -         -         0.00.0%         32.6%         -         -         0.00.0%         0.00.0%         -	Details of transfers and subsidies				Adiusted	growth	Total:	Medium-1	erm exper	diture	growth	Expen- diture/ Total: Average
Capial         311 102         92 70         155 164         61 833         41.6 M.         9.9%         177.05         118 788         70 551         4.5%         4           Musaums         Cape Town): Capial works         12.38         28.371         51.690         26.500         28.9%         17.7%         75.288         53.647         -         100.0%         35.7%         -         -         100.0%         57.35         13.718         10.230         17.50         32.7%         0.5%         6.750         1925         -         100.0%         0.3%         -         -         -         -         -         0.00%         0.3%         - <td< th=""><th></th><th>Auc</th><th>lited outcom</th><th>ne</th><th></th><th>(%)</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>(%)</th><th>(%)</th></td<>		Auc	lited outcom	ne		(%)					(%)	(%)
Museums         229 949         -         -         -         100,0%         3.5%         -	R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2012/13	- 2015/16	2016/17		2018/19	2015/16	- 2018/19
Labo Mucaums (Cape Tom): Capital works projects         12.85         26.371         51.600         28.9%         1.7%         75.288         53.647         -         -100.0%         0           Netson Marcelia Museum (Mittartis): Capital works projects         5.735         13.718         10.230         17.50         32.7%         0.5%         6.750         1.925         -	Capital	311 102	92 730	155 164	61 833	-41.6%	8.9%	173 036	118 788	70 551	4.5%	4.4%
projects         Autom Manufall         Capital works         5 735         13 718         10 200         1 750         2.2.7%         0.3%         6 750         1 925         -         100.0%         0           works projects         300         17 73         3 36         -         -         0.0.9%         0.3%         - </td <td>Museums</td> <td>249 949</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>-100.0%</td> <td>3.6%</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td>	Museums	249 949	-	-	-	-100.0%	3.6%	-	-	-	-	-
projects		12 385	26 371	51 690	26 500	28.9%	1.7%	75 288	53 647	-	-100.0%	1.6%
works projects         -         -         1         854         883         -         -         -         500         250         -         -         -         -         0.01%         - </td <td></td> <td>5 735</td> <td>13 718</td> <td>10 230</td> <td>1 750</td> <td>-32.7%</td> <td>0.5%</td> <td>6 750</td> <td>1 925</td> <td>-</td> <td>-100.0%</td> <td>0.1%</td>		5 735	13 718	10 230	1 750	-32.7%	0.5%	6 750	1 925	-	-100.0%	0.1%
Voortsker Museum (Pietermantzburg): Capital works projects         -         5046         1279         -         -         0.1%         -		300	17 736	936	-	-100.0%	0.3%	-	-	-	-	-
works projects         -	Luthuli Museum (Stanger): Capital works projects	-	1 854	883	-	-	-	500	250	-	-	-
works projects         Mathem         Mathm         Mathem         Mathm         M	· · · ·	-	5 046	1 279	-	-	0.1%	-	-	-	-	-
Capital works projects         -         -         -         -         -         2         000         -         -         -         0         0         -         -         0 <td></td> <td>-</td> <td>340</td> <td>1 200</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td>		-	340	1 200	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Capital works projects         Notice         Protection         Protection <th< td=""><td></td><td>10 459</td><td>1 803</td><td>620</td><td>-</td><td>-100.0%</td><td>0.2%</td><td>-</td><td>-</td><td>-</td><td>-</td><td>-</td></th<>		10 459	1 803	620	-	-100.0%	0.2%	-	-	-	-	-
works projects         Attional Museum (Bloemfontein): Capital works projects         619         415         13         062         -         -         0.0%         0.2%         -		-	549	1 000	-	-	-	2 000	-	-	-	-
projects       National English Literary Museum (Grahamstown):       -       3       36 514       26 000       -       0.9%       50 041       18 942       -       -100.%       1         Robben Island Museum (Cape Town): Capital works projects       16 405       5 754       17 530       -       -100.0%       0.6%       15 429       9 344       48 000       -       -       0.0%         Robben Island Museum (Cape Town): Capital works projects       4 300       -       -       -       -100.0%       0.6%       15 429       9 344       48 000       -<		8 000	19 141	14 343	2 089	-36.1%	0.6%	5 128	-	-	-100.0%	0.1%
Capital works projects       16 405       5 754       17 530       -       -100.0%       0.6%       15 429       9 344       48 000       -       -       0.0%         National Library of South Africa: Capital works       2 950       -       3 728       4 844       18.0%       0.2%       16 864       29 914       10 244       28.4%       0.0%         South Africa: Capital works       2 950       -       3 728       4 844       18.0%       0.2%       16 864       29 914       10 244       28.4%       0.0%         South Africa: Library for the Blind: Capital works       -       -       2 149       660       -       -       1036       4 766       12 307       166.5%       0         Households       -       -       435       -		619	415	13 062	-	-100.0%	0.2%	-	-	-	-	-
works projects         4         300         -		-	3	36 514	26 000	-	0.9%	50 041	18 942	-	-100.0%	1.0%
National Library of South Africa: Capital works projects         2 950         -         3 728         4 844         18.0%         0.2%         16 864         2 9 914         10 244         28.4%         0.0%           South African Library for the Blind: Capital works projects         -         -         2 149         660         -         -         1 036         4 766         12 307         166.5%         0           Households         Social benefits         -         <		16 405	5 754	17 530	-	-100.0%	0.6%	15 429	9 344	48 000	-	0.8%
projects       -       -       2 149       650       -       -       -       1 036       4 766       1 2 307       166.5%       0         South African Library for the Blind: Capital works       -       -       2 149       650       -       -       -       1 036       4 766       1 2 307       166.5%       0         Households       Social benefits       -       -       435       -	Freedom Park (Pretoria): Capital works projects	4 300	-	-	-	-100.0%	0.1%	-	-	-	-	-
projects       Households         Social benefits       -		2 950	-	3 728	4 844	18.0%	0.2%	16 864	29 914	10 244	28.4%	0.6%
Social benefits         -		-	-	2 149	650	-	-	1 036	4 766	12 307	166.5%	0.2%
Current         -         -         435         -         0.1%         1300         1365         1444         -5.3%         0.0           African World Heritage Fund         -         1000         1100         1700         -         0.1%         1300         1363         1424         3.5%         0.0         Main State         100         1300         1303         1333         1533         5.3%         0.0         1300         1428         15112         4.444         3.6%         0.0%         13603         1428         15112         4.44%	Households											
Employee social benefits         - <td>Social benefits</td> <td></td>	Social benefits											
Foreign governments and international organisations         Current         -         1000         1 100 <td>Current</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>435</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td>	Current	-	-	435	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Current         -         1000         1100         1700         -         0.1%         1300         1365         1444         -5.3%         0.0           African World Heritage Fund         -         1000         1100         1700         -         0.1%         1300         1365         1444         -5.3%         0.0           Non-profit institutions         -         1000         1100         1700         -         0.1%         1300         1365         1444         -5.3%         0.0           Various institutions         -         -         -         6600         4000         -         0.1%         4000         4200         4444         3.6%         0.0           Various institutions         -         -         -         6605         4000         -         0.1%         4000         4200         4444         3.6%         0.0           Engelenburg House Art Collection (Pretoria)         259         273         289         302         5.3%         -         318         334         353         5.3%         0.0           Bind South Africa         African National Council for the Blind         -         -         -         -         -         -         -	Employee social benefits	-	-	435	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
African World Heritage Fund       -       1 000       1 100       1 700       -       0.1%       1 300       1 365       1 444       -5.3%       0         Non-profit institutions       6 335       6 683       12 203       17 280       39.7%       0.6%       13 603       14 283       15 112       -4.4%       0         Various institutions       -       -       6500       4 000       -       0.1%       4 000       4 200       4 444       3.6%       0         Uarious institutions       -       -       6500       4 000       -       0.1%       4 000       4 200       4 444       3.6%       0         Englenburg House Art Collection (Pretoria)       259       273       289       302       5.3%       -       318       334       353       5.3%         Blind South Africa       6 076       6 410       6 795       7 108       5.4%       0.4%       7 485       7 89       8 315       5.4%       0         South Africa       National Council for the Blind       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       - <td></td> <td>ions</td> <td></td>		ions										
Non-profit institutions         6 335         6 683         12 203         17 280         39.7%         0.6%         13 603         14 283         15 112         -4.4%         00           Various institutions         -         -         650         4 000         -         0.1%         4 000         4 200         4 444         3.6%         0.0%           Engelenburg House Art Collection (Pretoria)         259         273         289         302         5.3%         -         318         334         353         5.3%           Blind South Africa         6 076         6 410         6 795         7 108         5.4%         0.4%         7 485         7 859         8 315         5.4%         0.0           South Africa         0.076         6 410         6 795         7 108         5.4%         0.4%         7 485         7 859         8 315         5.4%         0.0           South Africa         -         -         -         982         -         -         -         -         -         100.0%         2000         -23.8%         00           African Renaissance Institute         -         -         -         -         -         -         -         -         -						-						0.1%
Current         6 335         6 683         12 203         17 280         39.7%         0.6%         13 603         14 283         15 112         4.4%         00           Various institutions         -         -         650         4 000         -         0.1%         4 000         4 200         4 444         3.6%         0.0%           Engelenburg House Art Collection (Pretoria)         259         273         289         302         5.3%         -         318         334         353         5.3%           Bind South Africa         6 076         6 410         6 795         7 108         5.4%         0.4%         7 485         7 859         8 315         5.4%         0.0%           Library and Information Association of South Africa         -         -         982         -	-	-	1 000	1 100	1 700	-	0.1%	1 300	1 365	1 444	-5.3%	0.1%
Various institutions       -       -       650       4 000       -       0.1%       4 000       4 200       4 444       3.6%       0         Engelenburg House Art Collection (Pretoria)       259       273       289       302       5.3%       -       318       334       353       5.3%         Blind South Africa       6 076       6 410       6 795       7 108       5.4%       0.4%       7 485       7 859       8 315       5.4%       0         Library and Information Association of South Africa       -       -       4469       4 518       -       0.1%       1 800       1 890       2 000       -23.8%       0         South Africa National Council for the Blind       -       -       -       982       -	•	C 225	c coo	40.000	47.000	20.70/	0.00/	40.000	44.000	45 440	4 40/	0.00/
Engelenburg House Art Collection (Pretoria)       259       273       289       302       5.3%       -       318       334       353       5.3%         Blind South Africa       6 076       6 410       6 795       7 108       5.4%       0.4%       7 485       7 859       8 315       5.4%       0.0%         Library and Information Association of South Africa       -       -       4 469       4 518       -       0.1%       1 800       1 890       2 000       -23.8%       0.0%         South African National Council for the Blind       -       -       -       982       -						39.7%						0.6%
Blind South Africa       6 076       6 410       6 795       7 108       5.4%       0.4%       7 485       7 859       8 315       5.4%       0.0         Library and Information Association of South Africa       -       -       4469       4 518       -       0.1%       1 800       1 890       2 000       -23.8%       00         South African National Council for the Blind       -       -       -       982       -						- 5 20/	0.1%					0.270
Library and Information Association of South Africa       -       -       4 469       4 518       -       0.1%       1 800       1 890       2 000       -23.8%       0         South African National Council for the Blind       -       -       982       - </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>- 0.4%</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0.3%</td>							- 0.4%					0.3%
South African National Council for the Blind       -       -       -       982       - <t< td=""><td></td><td>0070</td><td>0410</td><td></td><td></td><td>5.4%</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>0.3%</td></t<>		0070	0410			5.4%						0.3%
African Renaissance Institute       -       -       370       -		-	-	4 403		-				2 000		
Capital       -       -       1345       -		_		_		_	_			_		-
Blind South Africa: Capital works projects       -       -       1345       - <th< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>1 3/15</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>_</td></th<>				1 3/15								_
Provinces and municipalities         Provinces         Provinces         Provincial Revenue Funds         Current         407 070         389 739         670 424         854 907         28.1%         33.4%         647 989         684 149         725 586         -5.3%         300           Community library services grant: Capital         407 070         389 739         670 424         854 907         28.1%         33.4%         647 989         684 149         725 586         -5.3%         300           Community library services grant: Capital         157 504         205 047         345 786         419 407         38.6%         16.2%         709 143         756 611         796 434         23.8%         288	•											
Provinces         Provincial Revenue Funds         407 070         389 739         670 424         854 907         28.1%         33.4%         647 989         684 149         725 586         -5.3%         300           Community library services grant: Capital         407 070         389 739         670 424         854 907         28.1%         33.4%         647 989         684 149         725 586         -5.3%         300           Community library services grant: Capital         157 504         205 047         345 786         419 407         38.6%         16.2%         709 143         756 611         796 434         23.8%         28.8%				1 040								
Current         407 070         389 739         670 424         854 907         28.1%         33.4%         647 989         684 149         725 586         -5.3%         330           Community library services grant: Capital         407 070         389 739         670 424         854 907         28.1%         33.4%         647 989         684 149         725 586         -5.3%         300           Capital         157 504         205 047         345 786         419 407         38.6%         16.2%         709 143         756 611         796 434         23.8%         28	Provinces											
Community library services grant: Capital         407 070         389 739         670 424         854 907         28.1%         33.4%         647 989         684 149         725 586         -5.3%         30           Capital         157 504         205 047         345 786         419 407         38.6%         16.2%         709 143         756 611         796 434         23.8%         28		407 070	389 739	670 424	854 907	28 1%	33 4%	647 989	684 149	725 586	-5 3%	30.5%
Capital 157 504 205 047 345 786 419 407 38.6% 16.2% 709 143 756 611 796 434 23.8% 28												30.5%
	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·										28.1%
Community library services grant: Current 157 504 205 047 345 786 419 407 38.6% 16.2% 709 143 756 611 796 434 23.8% 28.8%	•											28.1%

## **Personnel information**

Table 37.13 Heritage Promotion and Preservation personnel numbers and cost by salary level<sup>1</sup> prior to Cabinet approved reduction, effective from 2017/18<sup>2</sup>; budget reductions and aggregate baseline total

		per of posts																	
		mated for larch 2016			N	lumber and	d cost3 of	fnorsor	nal noste	filled / nl	anned f	or on funde	nd astahl	lichmon	+			Nur	nber
	Number	Number		Number and cost <sup>3</sup> of personnel posts filled / planned for on funded establishment									Average						
	of	of posts																	level/total:
	funded	additional																rate	Average
	posts	to the		Actual			sed estir	nate			Med	lium-term e		ure estir	I.			(%)	(%)
		establishment	2	2014/15		2	015/16		2	016/17		_	017/18		2	018/19		2015/16	- 2018/19
				•	Unit		•	Unit		•	Unit		•	Unit		•	Unit		
Heritage Prom		Preservation	Number	Cost		Number	Cost		Number	Cost		Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost		
Salary level	142	6	138	48.7	0.4	139	47.8	0.3	142	53.4	0.4	142	56.7	0.4	142	64.1	0.5	0.7%	100.0%
1 – 6	48	5	45	6.6	0.1	48	6.7	0.1	48	7.4	0.2	48	7.8	0.2	48	9.4	0.2	-	34.0%
7 – 10	66	1	62	18.9	0.3	64	20.7	0.3	66	23.3	0.4	66	24.8	0.4	66	27.4	0.4	1.0%	46.4%
11 – 12	18	-	19	11.6	0.6	17	10.8	0.6	18	12.2	0.7	18	13.1	0.7	18	14.7	0.8	1.9%	12.6%
13 – 16	10	-	12	11.6	1.0	10	9.6	1.0	10	10.5	1.0	10	11.0	1.1	10	12.6	1.3	-	7.1%
Reduction	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	(4.2)	-	-	(7.1)	-	-	-
Total	142	6	138	48.7	0.4	139	47.8	0.3	142	53.4	0.4	-	52.5	-	-	57.0	-	-	-

1. Data has been provided by the department and may not necessarily reconcile with official government personnel data.

 This programme's compensation of employees budget has been reduced by R11.3 million for 2017/18 and 2018/19. After consultation with the Department of Public Service and Administration and National Treasury, the department will finalise, develop and implement a plan to manage its personnel expenditure within this reduced expenditure ceiling.
 Rand million.

## Entities

#### Heritage institutions

#### Mandate

The Department of Arts and Culture subsidises various heritage institutions that were established in terms of the Cultural Institutions Act (1998). The mandate of the heritage institutions, particularly museums, is derived from the 1996 White Paper on Arts, Culture and Heritage, as well as the Cultural Institutions Act (1998).

The following heritage institutions receive annual transfers from the department: Die Afrikaanse Taalmuseum, the Ditsong museums, the Iziko museums, the KwaZulu-Natal Museum, the National Museum, the National English Literary Museum, the Robben Island Museum, the Voortrekker Museum, the War Museum of the Boer Republics, the William Humphreys Art Gallery, the Luthuli Museum, the Nelson Mandela Museum, Freedom Park and the Engelenburg House art collection.

While these institutions are largely dependent on annual transfers from the department, they also generate revenue through entrance fees, donor assistance and sponsorships. Most of these institutions are also schedule 3A public entities.

#### Selected performance indicators

Indicator	Programme/Objective/Activity	Outcome		Past		Current		Projections	
			2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19
Number of exhibitions held per year	Public engagement		601	633	643	667	707	721	735
Number of visitors at exhibitions per year	Public engagement		1 126 015	1 185 528	1 234 520	1 287 112	1 364 339	1 391 626	1 502 956
Number of new publications or articles produced per year	Business development	Outcome 14: Nation building and social	142	150	158	164	174	177	184
Number of heritage assets or artefacts acquired per year	Business development	cohesion	68 184	71 034	73 124	76 488	81 077	82 699	84 353
Number of educational interactions with schools per year	Public engagement		140 521	143 541	145 231	148 642	157 561	160 712	163 926

#### **Expenditure analysis**

Over the medium term, heritage institutions' focus will be on collecting, preserving, providing and promoting access to, and awareness of, South Africa's national heritage through hosting exhibitions as a means of encouraging educational and public outreach programmes, and celebrating the diversity of the country's cultural and natural heritage. They will ensure that heritage assets are accounted for, documented and maintained. This

is in line with the national development plan's vision of transforming society and uniting the country, and outcome 14 (nation building and social cohesion) of government's 2014-2019 medium term strategic framework.

In celebration of the diversity of the country's cultural and natural heritage, the services offered by museums are being made accessible to all South Africans. Over the medium term, heritage institutions plan to host 2 163 exhibitions and create awareness of museum services through 482 199 educational interactions with schools compared to 1 877 exhibitions and 429 293 educational interactions with schools in the period up to 2015/16. The museums plan to produce 535 research publications and articles related to heritage and culture over the MTEF period compared to 450 heritage and culture research publications and articles published in the period up to 2015/16. To achieve these milestones, approximately 38.1 per cent (R831.3 million) of the institutions' budget over the medium term will go towards the business development programme, and approximately R287.2 million will be spent to upgrade and maintain infrastructure across all museums in the country.

To preserve, provide and promote access to museum services, heritage institutions are expected to receive on average 72.3 per cent (R1.6 billion) of their revenue from the Department of Arts and Culture; 18 per cent (R398.7 million) from revenue streams in the form of entrance fees and sale of services; and 9.7 per cent (R217.9 million) from interest, rent on land, research, and donor funding. Due to the labour intensive nature of the institutions' work, an estimated 56.8 per cent (R1.2 billion) of total revenue over the medium term will be directed towards compensation of employees, and will allow for the appointment of 17 additional personnel over the medium term across 13 museums.

The deficits experienced in 2014/15 and 2015/16 are due to the costs incurred in implementing the generally recognised accounting practice standard for accounting for heritage assets. This standard requires the application of specified and relevant techniques to preserve collections and maintain the database of all museum collections. To address these deficits and deal with the cost pressure of implementing this accounting standard to ensure full compliance, Cabinet has approved R160 million to be allocated to museums in 2017/18.

#### Programmes/objectives/activities

Table 37.15 Heritage institutions	expenditure trends and estimates	by programme/objective/activity
Tuble of the field age institutions	compenditure trends and commutes	by programme, objective, activity

0						0					
						Expen-					Expen-
					Average	diture/				Average	diture/
					growth	Total:				growth	Total:
				Revised	rate	Average	Medium	-term expend	iture	rate	Average
	Audi	ited outcome		estimate	(%)	(%)		estimate		(%)	(%)
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2012/13 -	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 - 2	2018/19
Administration	285 763	299 885	320 576	344 489	6.4%	54.9%	340 207	459 907	395 647	4.7%	54.0%
Business development	160 500	184 437	244 457	252 011	16.2%	36.5%	248 437	306 477	276 347	3.1%	38.1%
Public engagement	47 077	55 171	41 769	48 638	1.1%	8.5%	53 874	65 372	58 501	6.3%	7.9%
Total	493 340	539 494	606 802	645 138	9.4%	100.0%	642 518	831 757	730 494	4.2%	100.0%

#### Statements of historical financial performance

#### Table 37.16 Heritage institutions statements of historical financial performance

Statement of financial performance				-					Outcome/
		Audited		Audited		Audited	Budget	Revised	Budget Average
	Budget	outcome	Budget	outcome	Budget	outcome	estimate	estimate	(%)
R thousand	2012/	13	2013/	14	2014/	15	2015/1	6	2012/13 - 2015/16
Revenue									
Non-tax revenue	112 383	109 167	123 616	131 618	124 400	140 694	144 526	167 298	108.7%
Sale of goods and services other than capital assets	67 748	77 493	75 591	89 864	82 571	104 935	109 937	111 551	114.3%
of which:									
Administrative fees	6 804	6 820	8 714	9 148	9 684	11 234	10 544	11 026	106.9%
Sales by market establishment	60 944	66 791	63 955	76 630	69 061	90 168	94 805	96 469	114.3%
Other sales	-	3 882	2 922	4 086	3 826	3 533	4 588	4 056	137.2%
Other non-tax revenue	44 635	31 674	48 025	41 754	41 829	35 760	34 589	55 747	97.5%
Transfers received	385 689	430 459	384 422	423 069	429 624	459 497	428 962	477 839	110.0%
Total revenue	498 073	539 626	508 038	554 687	554 025	600 192	573 488	645 137	109.7%
Expenses									
Current expenses	468 588	487 786	503 370	524 181	549 124	602 154	640 661	641 144	104.3%
Compensation of employees	296 271	286 194	332 393	302 583	341 076	324 655	362 784	362 847	95.8%
Goods and services	147 494	170 822	144 418	188 357	173 126	241 575	247 737	248 143	119.1%
Depreciation	24 824	30 483	26 560	29 446	34 768	32 728	30 141	30 154	105.6%
Interest, dividends and rent on land	-	286	-	3 794	155	3 197	-	-	4 694.9%
Transfers and subsidies	100	5 554	4 668	15 313	4 900	4 648	4 007	3 994	215.8%
Total expenses	468 688	493 340	508 038	539 494	554 024	606 802	644 668	645 138	105.0%
Surplus/(Deficit)	29 384	46 286	-	15 193	-	(6 610)	(71 180)	-	-

#### Statements of estimates of financial performance

#### Table 37.17 Heritage institutions statements of estimates of financial performance

Statement of financial performance			Expen-					Expen-
·		Average	diture/				Average	diture/
		growth	Total:				growth	Total:
	Revised	rate	Average				rate	Average
	estimate	(%)	(%)	Mee	dium-term estimat	e	(%)	(%)
R thousand	2015/16	2012/13	- 2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 - 2	2018/19
Revenue								
Non-tax revenue	167 298	15.3%	23.3%	190 079	196 911	229 573	11.1%	27.7%
Sale of goods and services other than capital assets	111 551	12.9%	16.3%	121 642	133 229	143 840	8.8%	18.0%
of which:								
Administrative fees	11 026	17.4%	1.6%	13 049	17 945	21 866	25.6%	2.2%
Sales by market establishment	96 469	13.0%	14.0%	103 038	109 425	115 795	6.3%	15.0%
Other sales	4 056	1.5%	0.7%	5 555	5 859	6 180	15.1%	0.8%
Other non-tax revenue	55 747	20.7%	7.0%	68 436	63 682	85 733	15.4%	9.7%
Transfers received	477 839	3.5%	76.7%	452 439	634 846	500 920	1.6%	72.3%
Total revenue	645 137	6.1%	100.0%	642 518	831 757	730 494	4.2%	100.0%
Expenses								
Current expenses	641 144	9.5%	98.7%	635 793	824 780	719 074	3.9%	130.5%
Compensation of employees	362 847	8.2%	56.0%	392 008	414 452	439 863	6.6%	56.8%
Goods and services	248 143	13.3%	37.0%	232 681	398 786	267 071	2.5%	39.8%
Depreciation	30 154	-0.4%	5.4%	11 104	11 542	12 015	-26.4%	2.4%
Interest, dividends and rent on land	-	-100.0%	0.3%	-	-	125	-	0.0%
Transfers and subsidies	3 994	-10.4%	1.3%	6 725	6 977	11 419	41.9%	1.0%
Total expenses	645 138	9.4%	100.0%	642 518	831 757	730 493	4.2%	100.0%
Surplus/(Deficit)	-	(1)	-	-	-	-	-	-

#### **Personnel information**

Table 37.18 Heritage institutions personnel numbers and cost by salary level<sup>1</sup>

		<u> </u>																	
	estin	er of posts nated for nrch 2016			I	Number an	ıd cost¹ o	f person	nel posts	filled / pla	anned fo	or on funde	d establis	shment				Nun	nber
-	Number	Number																Average	Salary
	of	of																growth	level/Total:
	funded	posts																rate	Average
	posts	on approved		Actual		Revis	ed estima	ate			Med	dium-term	expenditu	ire estin	nate			(%)	(%)
		establishment		2014/15		2	2015/16			2016/17		:	2017/18			2018/19		2015/16	- 2018/19
					Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit		
Heritage	institution	s	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost		
Salary level	1 247	1 232	1 239	324.7	0.3	1 169	362.8	0.3	1 186	392.0	0.3	1 192	414.5	0.3	1 195	439.9	0.4	6.6%	100.0%
1-6	353	349	460	52.1	0.1	348	52.7	0.2	348	55.6	0.2	349	58.7	0.2	349	62.0	0.2	5.6%	29.4%
7 – 10	773	762	672	197.0	0.3	703	221.2	0.3	719	242.7	0.3	724	256.5	0.4	727	272.8	0.4	7.2%	60.6%
11 – 12	74	74	65	40.4	0.6	72	49.2	0.7	72	51.4	0.7	72	54.5	0.8	72	57.7	0.8	5.4%	6.1%
13 – 16	47	47	42	35.3	0.8	46	39.7	0.9	47	42.3	0.9	47	44.7	1.0	47	47.4	1.0	6.0%	3.9%

1. Rand million.

#### Libraries

#### Mandate

The department subsidises the National Library of South Africa and the South African Library for the Blind. The National Library is established in terms of the National Library of South Africa Act (1998), which requires it to contribute to socioeconomic, cultural, educational, scientific and innovative development by collating, recording, preserving and making available the national documentary heritage. It is also mandated to promote awareness and appreciation of the national documentary heritage by fostering information literacy, and by facilitating access to the world's information resources. The South African Library for the Blind is established in terms of the South African Library for the Blind Act (1998), and is mandated to provide a national library and information service to blind and print handicapped readers in South Africa.

#### Selected performance indicators

Table 37.19 Libraries performance indicators by programme/objective/activity and related outcome

Indicator	Programme/Objective/Activity	Outcome	ne Past			Current	P	ojections	
			2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19
Number of items catalogued providing bibliographic records per year	Business development		_1	19 500	21 934	10 000	15 000	15 000	15 000
Number of pages and images digitised in order to have digital records for preservation and access purposes per year	Business development		14 334	15 000	26 457	23 000	35 000	35 000	35 000
Number of books de-acidified per year	Business development		10 010	10 000	14 645	10 000	10 000	10 000	10 000
Number of books donated per year to promote and develop the culture of reading in South Africa	Business development	Entity mandate	43 210	7 600	14 645	10 000	10 500	11 000	11 500
Number of book clubs established per year to promote and develop a reading culture in South Africa	Public engagement		10	10	24	15	15	16	16
Number of grants allocated to authors per year to promote and develop a culture of publishing in South Africa	Public engagement		9	8	14	10	10	10	10
Number of digital playback devices distributed per year	Public engagement		560	580	721	645	645	650	650

1. No historical data is available as this indicator was introduced in 2013/14.

#### **Expenditure analysis**

The National Library of South Africa and the South African Library for the Blind will continue over the medium term to contribute to socioeconomic, cultural, educational, scientific and innovation development. The two institutions plan to do this by collecting, recording, preserving and making available South Africa's documentary heritage, and promoting an awareness and appreciation of this by fostering information literacy and facilitating access to the world's information resources.

The focus of the libraries over the medium term will be on providing information to support teaching, learning and research in contribution to the vision of the national development plan and outcome 1 (quality basic education) of government's 2014-2019 medium term strategic framework. Libraries will aim to empower citizens through access to information offered through their library and information services; ensure high speed broadband internet availability; promote a culture of reading and writing in South Africa; and expand ICT

capacity to facilitate access to collections and materials. Promoting e-literacy and instituting ICT incentives will also form a large part of their focus over the MTEF period.

The libraries will continue to work towards their ultimate goal of providing free access to information through internet technology, as well as broadening social cohesion and unity while redressing the inequities of the past by locating public libraries as hubs within communities. The Mzansi Libraries On-Line grant is set to continue over the medium term, and aims to increase access to ICT in public libraries in South Africa, and increase social and economic benefits for public library users. This will be achieved through meeting the informational needs of users by ensuring public ICT access, and enhancing skills and capacity among public library staff. Through the grant, the National Library of South Africa will receive R138.9 million over the medium term from the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation to achieve these objectives. Purchasing ICT equipment such as laptops, tablets and network equipment, providing free connectivity, and training and developing personnel is expected to drive expenditure of R103.7 million in the administration and business development programmes.

Digitisation is inherently part of the National Library of South Africa's mandate to protect and preserve South Africa's published heritage. The library has been allocated R6.5 million in 2016/17 by the National Lotteries Board for the digitisation of newspapers. Furthermore, to ensure that heritage assets are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations, Cabinet has approved a once off budget allocation of R32 million in 2017/18 to the National Library of South Africa for the implementation of generally recognised accounting practice 103, an accounting treatment for heritage assets. Furthermore, the library also aims to establish 47 book clubs in schools, libraries, and correctional centres to ensure that knowledge is not lost for future generations and that information is available for research at a cost of R1.3 million. It also plans to donate 33 000 books at a cost of R9 million over the medium term to promote and develop a culture of reading in South Africa.

The South African Library for the Blind plays an important role, in collaboration with international bodies such as the World Intellectual Property Organisation, in addressing the lack of sharing of digital book files across borders. The library is a member of the International Federation of Library Associations, which shares and exchanges knowledge about library service delivery to the library's market. As such, the library has added tactile books for children, a third reading format in addition to Braille and audiobooks, to its production line. Approximately 4 700 accessible items of library material are envisaged to be produced over the MTEF period at a cost of R16.3 million. It is also envisaged that 130 mini-library points will be established over the medium term, in collaboration with provincial library authorities, at a cost of R9 million.

The Department of Arts and Culture's Mzansi golden economy programme provides additional opportunities for beneficiaries of the South African Library for the Blind, specifically in skills development and employment. The library plans to initiate an annual programme over the medium term, where 12 blind and visually impaired learners in grade 11 and/or 12 from Eastern Cape will have the opportunity to learn about all aspects of the library's operations. These learners will receive a stipend for their time at the library, and will be exposed to various career options they may consider after leaving school. The cost of the programme over the medium term is estimated to be R75 000.

#### Programmes/objectives/activities

Table 37.20 Libraries expenditure trends and estimates by programme/objective/activity

				71 0							
						Expen-					Expen-
					Average	diture/				Average	diture/
					growth	Total:				growth	Total:
				Revised	rate	Average	Medium	-term expend	iture	rate	Average
	Aud	lited outcome	•	estimate	(%)	(%)		estimate		(%)	(%)
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2012/13 -	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 - 2	018/19
Administration	55 995	60 621	72 658	69 685	7.6%	59.6%	67 962	65 467	69 113	-0.3%	48.8%
Business development	21 202	23 356	19 636	42 692	26.3%	24.0%	44 855	78 057	48 771	4.5%	37.5%
Public engagement	14 704	19 225	18 942	17 903	6.8%	16.3%	18 788	19 715	20 867	5.2%	13.8%
Total	91 901	103 202	111 236	130 280	12.3%	100.0%	131 605	163 239	138 751	2.1%	100.0%

## Statements of historical financial performance

#### Table 37.21 Libraries statements of historical financial performance

Statement of financial performance									Outcome/
		Audited		Audited		Audited	Budget	Revised	Budget Average
	Budget	outcome	Budget	outcome	Budget	outcome	estimate	estimate	(%)
R thousand	2012/	13	2013/ <sup>-</sup>	14	2014/*	15	2015/1	6	2012/13 - 2015/16
Revenue									
Non-tax revenue	4 544	9 216	5 409	12 792	3 144	8 253	4 357	4 690	200.3%
Other non-tax revenue	4 544	9 216	5 409	12 792	3 144	8 253	4 357	4 690	200.3%
Transfers received	86 277	89 968	88 541	95 096	96 329	105 549	103 242	109 795	106.9%
Total revenue	90 821	99 184	93 950	107 888	99 473	113 802	107 599	114 485	111.1%
Expenses									
Current expenses	15 389	91 901	16 526	103 202	17 532	111 236	106 104	114 485	270.5%
Compensation of employees	10 525	60 366	11 614	64 909	13 108	67 851	74 521	74 521	243.8%
Goods and services	4 506	27 010	4 484	32 974	4 044	40 010	31 073	39 454	316.2%
Depreciation	358	4 525	428	5 319	380	3 369	510	510	818.8%
Interest, dividends and rent on land	-	-	-	-	-	6	-	-	-
Total expenses	15 389	91 901	16 526	103 202	17 532	111 236	106 104	114 485	270.5%
Surplus/(Deficit)	75 432	7 283	77 424	4 686	81 941	2 566	1 495	-	-

#### Statements of estimates of financial performance

Table 37.22 Libraries statements of estimates of financial performance

Statement of financial performance			Expen-					Expen-	
		Average	diture/				Average	diture/	
		growth	Total:				growth	Total:	
	Revised	rate	Average				rate	Average	
	estimate	(%)	(%)	Med	lium-term estimate	(%)	(%)		
housand 2015/1		2012/13	- 2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 -	2018/19	
Revenue									
Non-tax revenue	4 690	-20.2%	8.0%	5 013	5 415	5 648	6.4%	3.7%	
Other non-tax revenue	4 690	-20.2%	8.0%	5 013	5 415	5 648	6.4%	3.7%	
Transfers received	125 590	11.8%	92.0%	126 592	157 824	133 103	2.0%	96.3%	
Total revenue 130 280		9.5%	100.0%	131 605	163 239	138 751	2.1%	100.0%	
Expenses								ſ	
Current expenses	130 280	12.3%	100.0%	131 605	163 239	138 751	2.1%	507.5%	
Compensation of employees	74 521	7.3%	61.7%	79 014	82 995	87 826	5.6%	57.8%	
Goods and services	55 249	26.9%	34.9%	51 991	79 644	50 325	-3.1%	41.7%	
Depreciation	510	-51.7%	3.4%	600	600	600	5.6%	0.4%	
Total expenses	12.3%	100.0%	131 605	163 239	138 751	2.1%	100.0%		
Surplus/(Deficit)	-	(1)	-	-	-	-	-	-	

#### **Personnel information**

Table 37.23 Libraries personnel numbers and cost by salary level<sup>1</sup>

Number of posts estimated for																				
	31 March 2016 Number and cost <sup>1</sup> o						ost <sup>1</sup> of p	ersonne	nnel posts filled / planned for on funded establishment										Number	
	Number	Number																Average	Salary	
	of	of																growth	level/Total:	
	funded	posts																rate	Average	
	posts on approved Actual Revised estimate				nate	Medium-term expenditure estimate									(%)	(%)				
		establishment		2014/15 2015/16				2016/17 2017/18						2018/19			2015/16 - 2018/19			
					Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit			
Libraries	s		Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost			
Salary level	223	239	221	67 851	307.0	221	74 521	337.2	219	79 014	360.8	219	82 995	379.0	217	87 826	404.7	5.6%	100.0%	
1 – 6	45	49	42	7 886	187.8	45	9 049	201.1	40	9 903	247.6	40	9 919	248.0	38	10 389	273.4	4.7%	18.6%	
7 – 10	163	175	166	50 357	303.4	161	52 340	325.1	163	55 728	341.9	163	58 199	357.0	163	62 027	380.5	5.8%	74.2%	
11 – 12	11	11	10	6 174	617.4	11	7 919	719.9	12	8 492	707.7	12	9 700	808.3	12	9 138	761.5	4.9%	5.4%	
13 – 16	4	4	3	3 434	1 144.7	4	5 213	1 303.3	4	4 891	1 222.8	4	5 177	1 294.3	4	6 272	1 568.0	6.4%	1.8%	

1. Rand thousand.

## National Arts Council

### Mandate

The National Arts Council derives its mandate from the National Arts Council Act (1997). The act mandates the council to develop and promote excellence in the arts by providing opportunities for persons to practise the arts. This entails distributing funding to individuals, arts organisations and companies to enable them to create artistic products and implement projects that develop the arts.

### Selected performance indicators

Table 37.24 National Arts Council performance indicators by programme/objective/activity and related outco
--

Indicator	Programme/Objective/Activity	Outcome		Past		Current	P	rojections	
			2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19
Number of individual artists supported per year	Business development		86	104	157	211	212	214	216
Number of community art centres supported to function at an acceptable level per year	Business development		_1	_1	9	7	8	9	10
Number of arts programmes developed and successfully implemented per year	Business development	Outcome 14: Nation building and social cohesion	_1	_1	13	7	8	9	10
Number of flagship creative arts projects financially supported per year	Business development		_1	_1	15	3	3	3	4
Number of arts organisations per year receiving 3-year funding	Business development		66	98	92	91	91	91	91

1. No historical data is available as these indicators were introduced in 2014/15.

### **Expenditure analysis**

In line with outcome 14 (nation building and social cohesion) of government's 2014-2019 medium term strategic framework, the focus of the National Arts Council over the medium term will be on fostering the expression of national identity through the arts, funding projects to empower historically disadvantaged individuals, promoting freedom in the practice of the arts, and building capacity to attain sustainability in the arts.

Over the medium term, the council's focus will be on disbursing grants to various beneficiaries, funding flagship projects, and building the capacity of community arts centre managers and arts managers. Additional focus over the medium term will be on mainstreaming the role of the arts in social and economic development through enterprise development and job creation; providing financial support to artists, cultural institutions, non-governmental organisations and community based organisations; and providing 294 bursaries to arts practitioners, administrators and educators for studies in the fields of arts and culture. This will be at an estimated cost of R18.3 million through the business development and public engagement programmes.

Arts projects that the council supports usually take the form of the writing of new drama scripts, performances, the writing of novels and short stories, music compositions, performances, and craft and visual arts exhibitions. The council will continue to support organisations that work with local communities to address specific artistic needs and uplift residents socially and economically. R145 million over the medium term is allocated towards this support, as well as implementing the council's strategic goals of supporting arts projects and organisations, including activities in community arts centres and programmes of performing arts institutions.

The artistic wealth of the population translates into economic gain and benefit, and job creation. Artists, administrators and practitioners involved in the creation of artistic and cultural goods enable the creation of job opportunities, entrepreneur development, increased market access and cultural exchanges to enrich the social, artistic and economic lives of people. It is envisaged that, largely in the informal sector, 673 jobs of a permanent nature and 1 571 jobs of a temporary nature will be created through artists coming together on productions and then moving on to other creative endeavours. This will be made possible through an allocation of R163 million over the medium term for the awarding of approximately 1 771 grants to multiple art disciplines, compared to 1 213 grants awarded between 2012/13 and 2014/15 amounting to R130.2 million. The council will continue to fund its flagship arts projects such as From the Hip: Khulumakahle, Ifa Lethu and Spotlight on South Africa, which are intended to significantly raise the profile of the council within the arts and culture sector, increase its access to markets, develop creative engagements for South African artists, promote equity in the arts by supporting indigenous art forms, and sustain arts capability through human development and infrastructural

support. These projects are provided for from the council's reserves and available funds accumulated over time, and it is anticipated that 9 projects will be funded at a total cost of R5 million over the MTEF period.

### Programmes/objectives/activities

#### Table 37.25 National Arts Council expenditure trends and estimates by programme/objective/activity

						Expen-					Expen-
					Average	diture/				Average	diture/
					growth	Total:				growth	Total:
				Revised	rate	Average	Medium	-term expend	iture	rate	Average
	Auc	lited outcome		estimate	(%)	(%)		estimate		(%)	(%)
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2012/13 -	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 - 2	2018/19
Administration	29 069	32 410	30 381	28 827	-0.3%	31.8%	29 462	25 066	26 702	-2.5%	26.6%
Business development	14 368	19 033	16 719	24 888	20.1%	19.7%	26 725	30 161	31 728	8.4%	27.2%
Public engagement	40 894	54 172	47 586	42 374	1.2%	48.5%	44 995	51 014	53 973	8.4%	46.2%
Total	84 331	105 615	94 686	96 089	4.4%	100.0%	101 182	106 241	112 403	5.4%	100.0%

## Statements of historical financial performance

#### Table 37.26 National Arts Council statements of historical financial performance

Statement of financial performance

Statement of financial performance									Budget
		Audited		Audited		Audited	Budget	Revised	
	Budget	outcome	Budget	outcome	Budget	outcome	estimate	estimate	
R thousand	2012/*	13	2013/	14	2014	/15	2015/1	6	2012/13 - 2015/16
Revenue									
Non-tax revenue	3 366	11 519	1 566	6 196	1 000	7 176	-	-	419.6%
Other non-tax revenue	3 366	11 519	1 566	6 196	1 000	7 176	-	-	419.6%
Transfers received	87 527	88 451	87 554	87 554	91 865	91 865	96 089	96 089	100.3%
Total revenue	90 893	99 970	89 120	93 750	92 865	99 041	96 089	96 089	105.4%
Expenses									
Current expenses	23 294	29 069	23 455	32 410	30 865	30 381	26 604	28 827	115.8%
Compensation of employees	12 917	13 732	15 533	15 128	14 502	16 294	15 314	17 337	107.3%
Goods and services	9 560	13 822	7 319	15 734	14 764	12 602	11 026	11 226	125.1%
Depreciation	680	1 224	603	1 285	1 349	1 250	-	-	142.8%
Interest, dividends and rent on land	137	291	-	263	250	235	264	264	161.8%
Transfers and subsidies	67 599	55 262	65 665	73 205	62 000	64 305	67 262	67 262	99.1%
Total expenses	90 893	84 331	89 120	105 615	92 865	94 686	93 866	96 089	103.8%
Surplus/(Deficit)	-	15 639	-	(11 865)	-	4 355	2 223	-	-

Outcome/

## Statements of estimates of financial performance

#### Table 37.27 National Arts Council statements of estimates of financial performance

Statement of financial performance			Expen-					Expen-
		Average	diture/				Average	diture/
		growth	Total:				growth	Total:
	Revised	rate	Average				rate	Average
	estimate	(%)	(%)	Med	ium-term estimat	e	(%)	(%)
R thousand	2015/16	2012/13	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 - 2	018/19
Revenue								
Transfers received	96 089	2.8%	93.7%	101 182	106 241	112 403	5.4%	100.0%
Total revenue	96 089	-1.3%	100.0%	101 182	106 241	112 403	5.4%	100.0%
Expenses								
Current expenses	28 827	-0.3%	31.8%	29 462	25 066	26 702	-2.5%	28.7%
Compensation of employees	17 337	8.1%	16.5%	17 519	18 745	20 058	5.0%	17.7%
Goods and services	11 226	-6.7%	14.1%	11 943	6 321	6 644	-16.0%	8.8%
Interest, dividends and rent on land	264	-3.2%	0.3%	-	-	-	-100.0%	0.1%
Transfers and subsidies	67 262	6.8%	68.2%	71 720	81 175	85 701	8.4%	73.4%
Total expenses	96 089	4.4%	100.0%	101 182	106 241	112 403	5.4%	100.0%
Surplus/(Deficit)	-	(1)	-	-	-	-	-	-

	estir	per of posts mated for arch 2016			Nur	nhor and	cost1 of	norsoni	al nosta	illod / pl	nnod f	or on fund	lad astal	alishma	<b>n</b> t			Nu	mber
-					NUI	inder and	COSLOI	personi	iei posis i	ilieu / pi	anneu i		ieu estai	Jiisiine	nı				1
	Number	Number																Average	-
	of	of																growth	level/Total
	funded	posts																rate	Average
	posts	on approved	1	Actual		Revise	ed estim	ate			Medi	ium-term e	xpendit	ure esti	mate			(%)	(%
		establishment	2	2014/15		2	015/16		2	2016/17		2	017/18			2018/19		2015/16	6 - 2018/19
					Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit		
National	Arts Cou	uncil	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost		
Salary evel	32	32	32	16.3	0.5	32	17.3	0.5	32	17.5	0.5	32	18.7	0.6	32	20.1	0.6	5.0%	100.0%
1-6	5	5	1	0.1	0.1	5	0.7	0.1	5	0.7	0.1	5	0.8	0.2	5	0.8	0.2	7.0%	15.6%
7 – 10	11	11	15	3.5	0.2	11	4.0	0.4	11	4.3	0.4	11	4.6	0.4	11	4.8	0.4	6.4%	34.49
1 – 12	14	14	14	10.2	0.7	14	10.0	0.7	14	9.6	0.7	14	10.3	0.7	14	11.1	0.8	3.7%	43.89
13 – 16	2	2	2	2.4	1.2	2	2.7	1.3	2	2.9	1.4	2	3.1	1.5	2	3.3	1.6	7.0%	6.3%

Table 37.28 National Arts Council personnel numbers and cost by salary level<sup>1</sup>

1. Rand million.

## **National Film and Video Foundation**

### Mandate

The National Film and Video Foundation is governed by the National Film and Video Foundation Act (1997), as amended by the Cultural Laws Amendment Act (2001), to develop and promote the film and video industry in South Africa.

## Selected performance indicators

Table 37.29 National Film and Video Foundation performance indicators by programme/objective/activity and related outcome

Indicator	Programme/Objective/Activity	Outcome		Past		Current	P	Projections		
			2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	
Number of local content scripts developed per year	Business development		25	20	39	30	66	68	70	
Number of local content films produced per year	Business development		48	33	27	25	38	40	42	
Number of bursaries provided for various elements of film and video studies per year	Business development	Entity mandate	59	116	61	60	63	66	69	
Number of film festivals hosted per year	Business development		20	15	15	16	16	16	16	

## Expenditure analysis

The national development plan highlights the importance of education and skills development for economic growth. Film and other products of the cultural industries provide models and tools to foster constitutional values, and encourage equal opportunities, inclusion and redress. Over the medium term, through the development and promotion of the film and video industry in South Africa, the National Film and Video Foundation aims to facilitate dialogue, develop skills, and create job opportunities.

The foundation will focus on developing and promoting the film and video industry by grooming young people to enter the industry, and enabling those who are already working in the industry to secure longevity by gaining crucial experience and undergoing regular upskilling. In addition, the foundation will provide and encourage opportunities for people, especially those from disadvantaged communities, to get involved in the industry.

The talent pool for the film industry is growing, and the foundation aims to fulfil its objective of increasing training opportunities to increase the skills base in the country's film and video industry. The foundation provides the film industry with critical financial support and technical expertise to take film projects from ideas to products that can be screened. To this end, the foundation aims to award 198 bursaries at a cost of R4.6 million for various elements of film and video studies over the medium term.

The foundation aims to develop 204 local content scripts and produce 120 local content films over the medium term, compared to 84 local content scripts developed and 108 local content films produced between 2012/13 and 2014/15, at an estimated cost of R138.1 million over the period. This will help to create a sustainable industry that contributes to the national economy, and increases skills in scriptwriting, directing and producing. These crucial skills areas are required for growth and expansion, and have a direct influence on the number of films

produced locally. R168.6 million is allocated over the MTEF period to the business development programme, mainly for the production and development of film and video content.

To achieve these objectives over the medium term, the foundation receives an estimated 97.4 per cent (R388.5 million) of its total revenue from the Department of Arts and Culture, and 2.6 per cent (R10.8 million) from interest earned.

### Programmes/objectives/activities

Table 37.30 National Film and Video Foundation expenditure trends and estimates by programme/objective/activity

						Expen-					Expen-
					Average	diture/				Average	diture/
					growth	Total:				growth	Total:
				Revised	rate	Average	Medium	-term expend	iture	rate	Average
	Auc	lited outcome	)	estimate	(%)	(%)		estimate		(%)	(%)
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2012/13 -	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 - 2	018/19
Administration	16 642	20 067	21 293	20 634	7.4%	15.6%	22 307	23 646	24 353	5.7%	17.5%
Business development	32 250	46 972	89 407	50 701	16.3%	40.7%	53 495	55 482	59 599	5.5%	42.3%
Public engagement	45 960	56 148	74 672	48 146	1.6%	43.7%	50 705	53 524	56 185	5.3%	40.2%
Total	94 852	123 187	185 372	119 481	8.0%	100.0%	126 507	132 652	140 137	5.5%	100.0%

### Statements of historical financial performance

Table 37.31 National Film and Video Foundation statements of historical financial performance

Statement of financial performance

Statement of infancial performance									Budget
		Audited		Audited		Audited	Budget	Revised	
-	Budget	outcome	Budget	outcome	Budget	outcome	estimate	estimate	(%)
R thousand	2012/	13	2013/	14	2014	/15	2015/1	6	2012/13 - 2015/16
Revenue									
Non-tax revenue	720	2 554	960	2 906	960	19 415	960	2 760	767.6%
Other non-tax revenue	720	2 554	960	2 906	960	19 415	960	2 760	767.6%
Transfers received	87 342	92 685	105 223	120 433	111 588	169 384	116 721	116 721	118.6%
Total revenue	88 062	95 239	106 183	123 339	112 548	188 799	117 681	119 481	124.1%
Expenses									
Current expenses	20 918	23 524	25 853	28 491	28 778	31 335	31 096	31 096	107.3%
Compensation of employees	13 173	13 001	15 180	16 191	18 278	18 484	19 880	19 880	101.6%
Goods and services	7 121	9 968	9 355	11 690	9 810	11 601	9 656	9 656	119.4%
Depreciation	624	555	1 318	610	690	1 250	1 560	1 560	94.8%
Transfers and subsidies	67 144	71 328	80 330	94 696	83 770	154 037	88 385	88 385	127.8%
Total expenses	88 062	94 852	106 183	123 187	112 548	185 372	119 481	119 481	122.7%
Surplus/(Deficit)	-	387	-	152	-	3 427	(1 800)	-	-

Outcome/

### Statements of estimates of financial performance

 Table 37.32 National Film and Video Foundation statements of estimates of financial performance

Statement of financial performance			Expen-					Expen-
		Average	diture/				Average	diture/
		growth	Total:				growth	Total:
	Revised	rate	Average				rate	Average
	estimate	(%)	(%)	Med	ium-term estimate	)	(%)	(%)
R thousand	2015/16	2012/13 -	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 - 2	018/19
Revenue								
Non-tax revenue	2 760	2.6%	4.4%	3 600	3 600	3 600	9.3%	2.6%
Other non-tax revenue	2 760	2.6%	4.4%	3 600	3 600	3 600	9.3%	2.6%
Transfers received	116 721	8.0%	95.6%	122 907	129 052	136 537	5.4%	97.4%
Total revenue	119 481	7.9%	100.0%	126 507	132 652	140 137	5.5%	100.0%
Expenses								
Current expenses	31 096	9.7%	22.7%	35 307	37 352	38 637	7.5%	29.5%
Compensation of employees	19 880	15.2%	13.4%	23 042	24 351	25 355	8.4%	17.8%
Goods and services	9 656	-1.1%	8.6%	10 585	11 220	11 430	5.8%	8.3%
Depreciation	1 560	41.1%	0.8%	1 680	1 781	1 852	5.9%	1.3%
Transfers and subsidies	88 385	7.4%	77.3%	91 200	95 300	101 500	4.7%	72.6%
Total expenses	119 481	8.0%	100.0%	126 507	132 652	140 137	5.5%	100.0%
Surplus/(Deficit)	-	(1)	-	-	-	-	-	-

Table 37.33 National Film and Video Foundation personnel numbers and cost by salary level<sup>1</sup>

		er of posts nated for																	
	31 Ma	arch 2016				Number an	d cost¹ o	f person	nel posts i	filled / pla	nned fo	r on funded	l establis	hment				Nu	mber
	Number	Number																Average	Salary
	of	of																growth	level/Total:
	funded	posts																rate	Average
	posts	on approved		Actual		Revis	ed estima	ate			Mec	dium-term e	expenditu	re estin	nate			(%)	(%)
		establishment	:	2014/15		2	015/16		:	2016/17		2	017/18		2	2018/19		2015/16	- 2018/19
Nationa	I Film and	Video			Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit		
Foundat	tion		Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost		
Salary level	35	35	36	18.5	0.5	33	19.9	0.6	36	23.0	0.6	36	24.4	0.7	36	25.4	0.7	8.4%	100.0%
1-6	2	2	3	0.2	0.1	2	0.4	0.2	3	0.6	0.2	3	0.6	0.2	3	0.7	0.2	14.0%	7.8%
7 – 10	23	23	23	8.9	0.4	21	9.4	0.4	23	10.9	0.5	23	11.6	0.5	23	12.0	0.5	8.4%	63.8%
11 – 12	5	5	5	3.4	0.7	5	3.7	0.7	5	4.3	0.9	5	4.5	0.9	5	4.7	0.9	8.4%	14.2%
13 – 16	4	4	4	4.1	1.0	4	4.2	1.1	4	5.0	1.3	4	5.3	1.3	4	5.5	1.4	9.3%	11.4%
17 – 22	1	1	1	1.9	1.9	1	2.1	2.1	1	2.2	2.2	1	2.4	2.4	1	2.5	2.5	5.7%	2.8%

1. Rand million.

## **National Heritage Council**

### Mandate

The National Heritage Council is a schedule 3A public entity established in terms of the National Heritage Council Act (1999). The council's mandate is to engage heritage stakeholders in public and private institutions, including the various organs of civil society; mobilise debates; build awareness about heritage; and develop, promote and protect the national heritage for present and future generations.

## Selected performance indicators

Table 37.34 National Heritage Council performance indicators by programme/objective/activity and related outcome

Indicator	Programme/Objective/Activity	Outcome		Past		Current	Р	rojections	
			2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19
Number of heritage projects financially supported through a public call per year	Business development		25	20	20	20	20	20	20
Number of intangible heritage projects financially supported per year	Business development	Entity mandate	15	15	15	15	15	15	15
Number of unsolicited strategic projects supported per year	Business development		5	5	5	5	5	5	5
Number of projects linked to liberation heritage route funded per year	Business development		2	5	5	5	5	5	5

## **Expenditure analysis**

The focus of the National Heritage Council over the medium term will be on building awareness about heritage, and developing, promoting and protecting South Africa's national heritage for present and future generations through efforts such as the liberation heritage route project. The council will also contribute to outcome 14 (nation building and social cohesion) of government's 2014-2019 medium term strategic framework over the MTEF period through numerous projects that preserve culture and create tourism hubs.

The rollout of the liberation heritage route project will put more emphasis on the unsung heroes and heroines of the liberation struggle. 15 projects linked to the liberation heritage route, including partnerships with the heritage sector and communities on commemorative events, research, repatriations, intergovernmental relations on the South African liberation heritage route and the African liberation heritage programme, will be funded at a projected cost of R2.8 million over the medium term.

Through its business development programme, the council protects, preserves and promotes heritage through thought leadership; funds community heritage projects and knowledge production; commissions research for policy advice; provides support for cultural expressions and nation building initiatives; engages with stakeholders; and coordinates and advises on infrastructure development to create tourism hubs that will provide socioeconomic benefits for local communities living near significant heritage sites. It includes the project to nominate the Nelson Mandela sites of liberation and reconciliation for placement on the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organisation world heritage list, which will focus on mainstreaming sites

linked to the legacy of the late global icon. Other sites under consideration over the MTEF period include Mqhekezweni in Eastern Cape, Waaihoek in Western Cape, and the University of Fort Hare in Eastern Cape. The business development programme makes up an estimated 52.4 per cent (R102.1 million) of the total budget of the council over the medium term, compared to 57.2 per cent spent (R111.2 million) between 2012/13 and 2015/16.

The council will continue to contribute to preserving South Africa's living heritage, and creating awareness on tangible and intangible cultural heritage and practices by funding community heritage projects through the annual call for funding, adjudicated by an independent panel. R11.1 million over the medium term has been set aside to fund 60 heritage projects through public calls for proposals. Particular focus will be given to projects that promote the creation and preservation of knowledge about heritage in response to the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organisation 2003 convention on the safeguarding of tangible and intangible cultural heritage.

In partnership with the Department of Basic Education and South African National Parks, the council, through the heritage education schools outreach programme, is creating awareness on heritage management and foregrounding heritage within the school curriculum. This programme aims to promote awareness among young people on the importance of national heritage, and create a better understanding of the interdependence of cultures. R1.8 million has been budgeted over the medium term for the participants' travel and accommodation costs, and prizes for the winners.

### Programmes/objectives/activities

Table 37.35 National Heritage Council expenditure trends and estimates by programme/objective/activity

						Expen-					Expen-
					Average	diture/				Average	diture/
					growth	Total:				growth	Total:
				Revised	rate	Average	Medium	term expendi	iture	rate	Average
	Auc	lited outcome		estimate	(%)	(%)		estimate		(%)	(%)
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2012/13 -	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 - 2	018/19
Administration	16 141	23 792	36 049	27 840	19.9%	42.8%	29 407	30 878	32 228	5.0%	47.6%
Business development	38 165	51 192	21 885	30 635	-7.1%	57.2%	32 167	33 775	36 175	5.7%	52.4%
Total	54 306	74 984	57 934	58 475	2.5%	100.0%	61 574	64 653	68 403	5.4%	100.0%

### Statements of historical financial performance

Table 37.36 National Heritage Council statements of historical financial performance

Statement of financial performance									Outcome/ Budget
		Audited		Audited		Audited	Budget	Revised	Average
	Budget	outcome	Budget	outcome	Budget	outcome	estimate	estimate	(%)
R thousand	2012/	13	2013/	14	2014/	15	2015/	16	2012/13 - 2015/16
Revenue									
Non-tax revenue	676	507	9 123	165	1 229	233	-	-	8.2%
Other non-tax revenue	676	507	9 123	165	1 229	233	-	-	8.2%
Transfers received	50 063	51 571	52 714	55 573	55 917	65 605	58 475	58 475	106.5%
Total revenue	50 739	52 078	61 837	55 738	57 146	65 838	58 475	58 475	101.7%
Expenses									
Current expenses	50 739	54 306	61 837	74 984	57 146	57 934	58 475	58 475	107.7%
Compensation of employees	16 469	18 241	20 074	22 500	22 692	24 847	25 636	25 636	107.5%
Goods and services	33 376	35 109	40 846	51 234	33 723	31 964	31 461	31 461	107.4%
Depreciation	664	851	623	964	477	823	1 063	1 063	130.9%
Interest, dividends and rent on land	230	105	294	286	254	300	315	315	92.1%
Total expenses	50 739	54 306	61 837	74 984	57 146	57 934	58 475	58 475	107.7%
Surplus/(Deficit)	-	(2 228)	-	(19 246)	-	7 904	-	-	-

## Statements of estimates of financial performance

#### Table 37.37 National Heritage Council statements of estimates of financial performance

Statement of financial performance			Expen-					Expen-
		Average	diture/				Average	diture/
		growth	Total:				growth	Total:
	Revised	rate	Average				rate	Average
	estimate	(%)	(%)	Medi	um-term estimate		(%)	(%)
R thousand	2015/16	2012/13 -	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 - 2	018/19
Revenue								
Transfers received	58 475	4.3%	99.6%	61 574	64 653	68 403	5.4%	100.0%
Total revenue	58 475	3.9%	100.0%	61 574	64 653	68 403	5.4%	100.0%
Expenses							ſ	
Current expenses	58 475	2.5%	100.0%	61 574	64 653	68 403	5.4%	107.1%
Compensation of employees	25 636	12.0%	37.6%	26 918	28 264	29 677	5.0%	43.7%
Goods and services	31 461	-3.6%	60.5%	33 209	34 870	37 131	5.7%	54.0%
Depreciation	1 063	7.7%	1.5%	1 116	1 172	1 231	5.0%	1.8%
Interest, dividends and rent on land	315	44.2%	0.4%	331	347	365	5.0%	0.5%
Total expenses	58 475	2.5%	100.0%	61 574	64 653	68 403	5.4%	100.0%
Surplus/(Deficit)	-	(1)	-	-	-	-	-	-

## **Personnel information**

#### Table 37.38 National Heritage Council personnel numbers and cost by salary level<sup>1</sup>

		er of posts nated for																	
	31 M	arch 2016			Num	ber and co	ost <sup>1</sup> of pe	ersonne	l posts fill	ed / plar	nned for	on funde	d establi	ishment	t			Nun	nber
	Number	Number																Average	Salary
	of	of																growth	level/Total:
	funded	posts																rate	Average
	posts	on approved		Actual		Revise	ed estim	ate			Medi	um-term e	xpendit	ure esti	mate			(%)	(%)
		establishment	2	2014/15		2	2015/16		2	016/17		2	017/18		2	2018/19		2015/16	- 2018/19
					Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit		
Nationa	l Heritage	Council	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost		
Salary level	26	26	28	24.8	0.9	26	25.6	1.0	27	26.9	1.0	27	28.3	1.0	27	29.7	1.1	5.0%	100.0%
1 – 6	2	2	2	0.3	0.1	2	0.3	0.1	2	0.3	0.2	2	0.3	0.2	2	0.5	0.2	19.8%	7.5%
7 – 10	7	7	9	5.5	0.6	7	4.2	0.6	8	4.1	0.5	8	4.3	0.5	8	4.5	0.6	2.8%	29.0%
11 – 12	3	3	3	2.5	0.8	3	2.8	0.9	3	2.5	0.8	3	2.6	0.9	3	2.8	0.9	-0.1%	11.2%
13 – 16	14	14	14	16.5	1.2	14	18.4	1.3	14	20.1	1.4	14	21.0	1.5	14	21.9	1.6	6.0%	52.4%

1. Rand million.

## Pan South African Language Board

#### Mandate

The Pan South African Language Board derives its legal mandate from the Pan South African Language Board Act (1995). The board was established to promote multilingualism and develop all official South African languages including Khoi, Nama, and San languages, and South African Sign Language.

### Selected performance indicators

#### Table 37.39 Pan South African Language Board performance indicators by programme/objective/activity and related outcome

Indicator	Programme/Objective/Activity	Outcome		Past		Current		Projections	
			2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19
Number of dictionaries and CDs developed and produced per year	Business development		_1	11	19	6	11	11	11
Number of national language bodies in place	Business development	Entity mandate	13	13	13	13	13	13	13
Number of spelling and authentic rules developed per year	Business development		6	11	19	14	10	10	10

1. No historical data is available as this indicator was introduced in 2013/14.

### **Expenditure analysis**

The development of previously marginalised languages and the promotion of their use will be the primary focus of the Pan South African Language Board over the medium term. In this way, the board contributes towards the broad objectives of outcome 14 (nation building and social cohesion) of government's 2014-2019 medium term strategic framework. In contributing to the national development plan's vision of uniting the country, the board

encourages South Africans to continue to make daily use of languages other than English. It is important that these languages, which are used in family and social networks, grow and flourish as they are a reflection of diversity and social cohesion.

Over the medium term, the board's focus will be on promoting the practice of South Africa's marginalised official languages, such as Koi, Nama, San and sign language, through investigating complaints about language rights violations from any individuals and institutions. It will further focus on producing dictionaries and compact discs for the 11 official languages at an estimated cost of R57.2 million over the MTEF period. As a result of the labour intensive nature of the board's work, which includes the development of language policies and dictionaries, and research on language related matters, an estimated 51.3 per cent (R153.3 million) of its budget over the medium term will be spent on compensation of employees.

In improving the board's governance, compliance and financial viability, a turnaround strategy will be implemented aimed at improving financial management, including addressing the irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure and governance issues for which the auditor general expressed audit disclaimers in 2013/14 and 2014/15. The turnaround strategy includes measures to enforce the annual submission of audited financial statements, trial balance statements and asset registers by the 11 national language units, and measures to recruit a legal team to advise on all legal cases against the board.

The board receives 99.4 per cent (R290.7 million) of its expected revenue over the medium term from the Department of Arts and Culture.

### **Programmes/objectives/activities**

Table 37.40 Pan South African Language Board expenditure trends and estimates by programme/objective/activity

	Aud	lited outcome		Revised estimate	Average growth rate (%)	Expen- diture/ Total: Average (%)		-term expend estimate	iture	Average growth rate (%)	Expen- diture/ Total: Average (%)
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2012/13 -	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 - 2	2018/19
Administration	33 304	40 689	27 985	66 904	26.2%	43.2%	51 902	40 846	47 225	-11.0%	49.8%
Business development	31 813	36 498	37 642	26 086	-6.4%	35.3%	28 846	42 143	36 024	11.4%	32.3%
Public engagement	15 038	21 120	25 356	20 083	10.1%	21.5%	12 713	17 851	24 519	6.9%	18.0%
Total	80 155	98 307	90 983	113 073	12.2%	100.0%	93 461	100 840	107 768	-1.6%	100.0%

Outcomol

## Statements of historical financial performance

Table 37.41 Pan South African Language Board statements of historical financial performance

Statement of financial performance

Statement of financial performance									Budget
		Audited		Audited		Audited	Budget	Revised	Average
	Budget	outcome	Budget	outcome	Budget	outcome	estimate	estimate	(%)
R thousand	2012/	13	2013/	14	2014	/15	2015/	16	2012/13 - 2015/16
Revenue									
Non-tax revenue	165	1 360	165	1 667	480	1 273	445	540	385.7%
Sale of goods and services other than capital assets	90	334	90	798	100	438	90	100	451.4%
of which:									
Sales by market establishment	90	334	90	798	100	438	90	100	451.4%
Other non-tax revenue	75	1 026	75	869	380	835	355	440	358.2%
Transfers received	69 480	74 752	78 180	101 242	83 497	93 836	87 338	87 338	112.1%
Total revenue	69 645	76 112	78 345	102 909	83 977	95 109	87 783	87 878	113.2%
Expenses									
Current expenses	69 645	80 155	78 345	98 307	83 977	90 983	113 073	113 073	110.9%
Compensation of employees	41 291	46 864	43 748	63 383	52 147	58 097	59 544	59 544	115.8%
Goods and services	26 842	31 922	32 993	33 348	30 214	31 787	52 039	52 039	104.9%
Depreciation	1 222	1 295	1 293	1 476	1 446	1 065	1 482	1 482	97.7%
Interest, dividends and rent on land	290	74	310	100	170	34	8	8	27.8%
Total expenses	69 645	80 155	78 345	98 307	83 977	90 983	113 073	113 073	110.9%
Surplus/(Deficit)	-	(4 043)	-	4 602	-	4 127	(25 290)	(25 195)	-

## Statements of estimates of financial performance

#### Table 37.42 Pan South African Language Board statements of estimates of financial performance

Statement of financial performance	Revised estimate	Average growth rate (%)	Expen- diture/ Total: Average (%)	Me	dium-term estimat	te	Average growth rate (%)	Expen- diture/ Total: Average (%)
R thousand	2015/16	2012/13 -	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 - 2	018/19
Revenue								
Non-tax revenue	540	-26.5%	1.3%	556	570	602	3.7%	0.6%
Sale of goods and services other than capital assets	100	-33.1%	0.4%	102	105	111	3.5%	0.1%
of which:								
Sales by market establishment	100	-33.1%	0.4%	102	105	111	3.5%	0.1%
Other non-tax revenue	440	-24.6%	0.9%	454	465	491	3.7%	0.5%
Transfers received	87 338	5.3%	98.7%	91 967	96 565	102 166	5.4%	99.4%
Total revenue	87 878	4.9%	100.0%	92 523	97 135	102 768	5.4%	100.0%
Expenses								
Current expenses	113 073	12.2%	100.0%	93 461	100 840	107 768	-1.6%	124.0%
Compensation of employees	59 544	8.3%	59.9%	48 163	51 053	54 113	-3.1%	51.3%
Goods and services	52 039	17.7%	38.7%	43 895	48 267	52 526	0.3%	47.4%
Depreciation	1 482	4.6%	1.4%	1 286	1 415	1 034	-11.3%	1.3%
Interest, dividends and rent on land	8	-52.4%	0.1%	117	105	95	128.1%	0.1%
Total expenses	113 073	12.2%	100.0%	93 461	100 840	107 768	-1.6%	100.0%
Surplus/(Deficit)	(25 195)	1	-	(938)	(3 705)	(5 000)	-41.7%	-

## **Personnel information**

#### Table 37.43 Pan South African Language Board personnel numbers and cost by salary level<sup>1</sup>

	estin	er of posts nated for arch 2016				Number an	d cost¹ of	f person	nel posts f	filled / pla	nned fo	r on funde	d establis	shment				Num	nber
	Number of funded	Number of posts																Average growth rate	level/Total:
	posts	on approved establishment		Actual 2014/15			ed estima 015/16	ate	2	2016/17	Med	lium-term	expenditu 2017/18	ure estin		2018/19		(%)	
Pan Sou	th African	Language			Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit		
Board			Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost		
Salary level	73	73	73	58.1	0.8	73	59.5	0.8	73	48.2	0.7	73	51.1	0.7	73	54.1	0.7	-3.1%	100.0%
1 – 6	13	13	13	16.9	1.3	13	15.9	1.2	13	1.9	0.1	13	2.0	0.2	13	2.2	0.2	-48.6%	17.8%
7 – 10	27	27	27	10.7	0.4	27	11.4	0.4	27	12.1	0.4	27	12.8	0.5	27	13.6	0.5	6.0%	37.0%
11 – 12	13	13	13	9.4	0.7	13	10.0	0.8	13	10.6	0.8	13	11.2	0.9	13	11.9	0.9	6.0%	17.8%
13 – 16	20	20	20	21.0	1.1	20	22.3	1.1	20	23.6	1.2	20	25.0	1.3	20	26.5	1.3	6.0%	27.4%

1. Rand million.

### Performing arts institutions

#### Mandate

Performing arts institutions are schedule 3A public entities established in terms of the Cultural Institutions Act (1998). The institutions are mandated to advance, promote and preserve the performing arts in South Africa; enhance the contribution of arts and culture to the national GDP; and create job opportunities and initiatives that will enhance nation building. The following arts institutions receive annual transfers from the department: Artscape Theatre Centre, The Playhouse Company, the Market Theatre, the Performing Arts Centre of the Free State, the State Theatre, and the Windybrow Theatre.

## Selected performance indicators

Table 37.44 Performing arts institutions p	performance indicators by programme	objective/activity and related outcome
	······································	

Indicator	Programme/Objective/Activity	Outcome		Past		Current	Р	rojections	
			2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19
Number of productions staged per year	Business development		229	282	195	200	205	208	212
Number of festivals staged per year	Business development	- Entity mandate	12	13	12	14	12	12	12
Number of skills training and development programmes conducted per year	Public engagement		47	38	49	50	52	55	57

### **Expenditure analysis**

Over the medium term, performing arts institutions will continue to work towards realising the national development plan's vision of broadening social cohesion and unity, while redressing the inequities of the past. The plan highlights the role that arts and culture play through expressing where a society finds itself and where it is going. Performing arts are a creative form of communication expressed through plays, music and dance, and can have an impact on society by bringing social issues and problems to light. All performing arts institutions will focus on projects that aim to do this over the medium term, as well as the maintenance and upgrading of facilities and infrastructure.

Over the medium term, the institutions' focus will be on staging 625 productions; building capacity and creating 408 jobs in the sector by providing high quality skills training and development programmes; making the performing arts accessible to the general public; and ensuring that the institutions' programmes represent the cultural diversity of South Africa. In support of these objectives, the institutions will receive R999 million, mainly from transfers from the Department of Arts and Culture.

In addition, performing arts institutions will continue to implement incubator programmes to facilitate the rapid development of skills. These programmes aim to provide access to rehearsal and production spaces, and to experienced, professional and technical personnel within performing arts institutions, as well as provide a platform for artists to practice and create local content that can generate income. Through this intervention, artists are empowered to create new work and enter the arts market. These programmes are expected to incur expenditure of R20.8 million over the medium term.

Maintaining and upgrading facilities and infrastructure at the Playhouse Company in Durban, the Market Theatre in Johannesburg, the Artscape Theatre in Cape Town, the Performing Arts Centre of the Free State, the South African State Theatre in Pretoria, and the Windybrow Theatre in Johannesburg will result in estimated expenditure of R215.2 million over the medium term. This is contained in the budget of R786.2 million in the administration programme, which accounts for an estimated 63.6 per cent of total expenditure over the medium term, and includes R503.4 million for compensation of employees. To ensure that heritage assets are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations, Cabinet has approved a once off allocation of R4 million in 2017/18 to the Performing Arts Centre of the Free State for the implementation of generally recognised accounting practice 103.

### Programmes/objectives/activities

Table 37.45 Performing arts institutions expenditure trends and estimates by programme/objective/activity

					Average growth	Expen- diture/ Total:				Average growth	Expen- diture/ Total:
				Revised	rate	Average	Medium	-term expend	iture	rate	Average
	Aud	lited outcome	•	estimate	(%)	(%)		estimate		(%)	(%)
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2012/13 -	2015/16	2016/17 2017/18 2018/19			2015/16 - 2	2018/19
Administration	192 345	200 811	231 089	230 133	6.2%	58.4%	243 596	260 853	281 783	7.0%	63.6%
Business development	118 223	106 409	101 891	126 497	2.3%	30.9%	124 031	134 039	115 312	-3.0%	31.3%
Public engagement	60 424	48 786	22 784	23 605	-26.9%	10.7%	23 300	24 248	8 910	-27.7%	5.0%
Total	370 992	356 006	355 764	380 235	0.8%	100.0%	390 926	419 140	406 004	2.2%	100.0%

## Statements of historical financial performance

#### Table 37.46 Performing arts institutions statements of historical financial performance

Statement of financial performance									Outcome/
		Audited		Audited		Audited	Budget	Revised	Budget Average
	Budget	outcome	Budget	outcome	Budget	outcome	estimate	estimate	•
R thousand	2012/	13	2013/	14	2014/	15	2015/1	16	2012/13 - 2015/16
Revenue									
Non-tax revenue	61 404	68 759	70 339	68 660	78 798	67 239	66 707	70 393	99.2%
Sale of goods and services other than	27 415	30 923	33 803	27 444	31 716	30 197	27 256	27 275	96.4%
capital assets									
of which:	r								
Sales by market establishment	26 755	30 241	33 110	27 051	31 023	29 872	26 867	26 868	96.8%
Other sales	660	682	693	393	693	325	389	407	74.2%
Other non-tax revenue	33 989	37 836	36 536	41 216	47 081	37 042	39 4 5 1	43 118	101.4%
Transfers received	254 913	317 078	254 754	310 378	336 069	311 205	370 467	309 842	102.7%
Total revenue	316 317	385 837	325 093	379 038	414 867	378 444	437 174	380 235	102.0%
Expenses									
Current expenses	304 683	370 604	324 644	355 767	414 867	355 040	379 542	380 055	102.7%
Compensation of employees	132 543	141 047	143 969	147 438	151 173	154 477	167 583	164 086	102.0%
Goods and services	145 004	190 876	158 207	166 160	239 354	154 492	186 947	190 946	96.3%
Depreciation	27 071	38 267	22 409	41 422	24 289	46 049	25 012	25 023	152.6%
Interest, dividends and rent on land	65	414	59	746	51	22	-	-	676.9%
Transfers and subsidies	429	388	449	240	-	724	180	180	144.8%
Total expenses	305 112	370 992	325 093	356 007	414 867	355 764	379 722	380 235	102.7%
Surplus/(Deficit)	11 205	14 845	-	23 031	-	22 680	57 452	-	-

## Statements of estimates of financial performance

#### Table 37.47 Performing arts institutions statements of estimates of financial performance

Statement of financial performance			Expen-					Expen-
		Average	diture/				Average	diture/
		growth	Total:				growth	Total:
	Revised	rate	Average				rate	Average
	estimate	(%)	(%)	Mee	lium-term estimat	e	(%)	(%)
R thousand	2015/16	2012/13	- 2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 - 2	2018/19
Revenue								
Non-tax revenue	70 393	0.8%	18.1%	70 529	72 357	74 284	1.8%	18.0%
Sale of goods and services other than capital assets	27 275	-4.1%	7.6%	28 629	28 652	30 264	3.5%	7.2%
of which:								
Sales by market establishment	26 868	-3.9%	7.5%	28 201	28 203	29 788	3.5%	7.1%
Other sales	407	-15.8%	0.1%	428	449	476	5.3%	0.1%
Other non-tax revenue	43 118	4.5%	10.5%	41 900	43 705	44 020	0.7%	10.8%
Transfers received	309 842	-0.8%	81.9%	320 397	346 783	331 720	2.3%	82.0%
Total revenue	380 235	-0.5%	100.0%	390 926	419 140	406 004	2.2%	100.0%
Expenses								
Current expenses	380 055	0.8%	99.9%	390 746	418 980	405 844	2.2%	112.3%
Compensation of employees	164 086	5.2%	41.5%	171 202	177 737	154 422	-2.0%	41.8%
Goods and services	190 946	0.0%	47.9%	192 427	212 402	221 629	5.1%	51.2%
Depreciation	25 023	-13.2%	10.4%	27 117	28 841	29 793	6.0%	6.9%
Transfers and subsidies	180	-22.6%	0.1%	180	160	160	-3.9%	0.0%
Total expenses	380 235	0.8%	100.0%	390 926	419 140	406 004	2.2%	100.0%
Surplus/(Deficit)	-	(1)	-	-	-	-	-	-

Table 37.48 Performing arts institutions personnel numbers and cost by salary level<sup>1</sup>

		er of posts nated for										,							
		arch 2016			N	lumber and	cost <sup>1</sup> of	personn	nel posts fi	led / plan	ned for	on funded	establish	ment				Nur	nber
	Number	Number																Average	Salary
	of	of																growth	level/Total:
	funded	posts																rate	Average
	posts	on approved		Actual		Revis	ed estima	ite			Medi	ium-term e	penditur	e estima	ite			(%)	(%)
		establishment	:	2014/15		2	2015/16		:	2016/17		:	2017/18		20	018/19		2015/16	- 2018/19
					Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit		
Perform	ing arts ins	stitutions	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost		
Salary level	561	561	648	141.0	0.2	621	150.6	0.2	613	157.3	0.3	609	163.3	0.3	617	176.0	0.3	5.3%	100.0%
1 – 6	269	269	367	38.9	0.1	332	37.5	0.1	313	37.9	0.1	305	37.1	0.1	308	38.8	0.1	1.2%	51.1%
7 – 10	252	252	240	69.9	0.3	249	77.2	0.3	258	81.7	0.3	262	86.1	0.3	266	93.7	0.4	6.7%	42.1%
1 – 12	18	18	20	13.7	0.7	19	14.3	0.8	20	15.8	0.8	18	14.3	0.8	19	16.1	0.8	4.1%	3.1%
3 – 16	22	22	21	18.5	0.9	21	21.7	1.0	22	21.9	1.0	23	24.0	1.0	23	25.4	1.1	5.4%	3.6%
7 – 22	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	1.9	1.9	1	2.0	2.0	-	0.1%

1. Rand million.

## South African Heritage Resources Agency

#### Mandate

The South African Heritage Resources Agency is a schedule 3A public entity, which was established in terms of the National Heritage Resources Act (1999). It is mandated to formulate national principles, standards and policy for the identification, recording and management of the national estate in terms of which heritage resource authorities and other relevant bodies must function in relation to South African heritage resources.

## Selected performance indicators

Table 37.49 South African Heritage Resources Agency performance indicators by programme/objective/activity and related outcome

Indicator	Programme/Objective/Activity	Outcome		Past		Current	Р	rojections	
			2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19
Number of research papers (published and non- published) produced per year	Business development		_1	_1	7	14	14	14	14
Number of internal publications produced per year	Business development		_1	_1	2	2	2	2	2
Number of media conferences and workshop platforms created/utilised per year to promote the agency	Public engagement	Entity mandate	_1	_1	10	10	10	10	10
Number of heritage activities commemorated during Heritage Month (September) per year	Business development		_1	_1	5	5	5	5	5

1. The agency implemented new strategic and annual performance plans from 2014/15. As a result, all indicators are new.

### **Expenditure analysis**

Heritage resources and services are central to human development in post-apartheid South Africa, and play an important political, social and economic role in constituting and transforming society. The focus of the South African Heritage Resources Agency over the medium term will be on promoting outcome 14 (nation building and social cohesion) of government's 2014-2019 medium term strategic framework through heritage preservation and conservation.

In line with its mandate of preserving and conserving heritage, the agency supports the professional development of sector skills for the management of heritage resources through a memorandum of understanding entered into with the Sol Plaatje University in Kimberley, which has developed and accredited course modules, and provides training for the sector. Other activities relate to the construction and rehabilitation, both locally and internationally, of 34 memorials of fallen heroes and heroines of the liberation struggle, and the conservation of heritage objects and sites. These activities are reflected in the goods and services budget, which represents approximately 39.8 per cent (R13.3 million) of the agency's total budget over the medium term.

The nature of the agency's work is labour intensive, largely due to the mandatory requirement that staff conduct site visits throughout the country for the restoration of heritage sites. 300 such site visits are expected to be conducted over the medium term to ensure that the restored sites remain tourist attractions because of their historical significance, and thereby contribute to public awareness of important political, social and economic struggles. As a result, expenditure on compensation of employees is expected to make up 51.7 per cent

(R108.9 million) of the organisation's total budget of R189.2 million over the MTEF period to accommodate 86 personnel, and this number is expected to remain constant over the medium term. To increase efficiency, the agency also plans to establish an information system to improve the management of heritage bodies and local planning authorities at a projected cost of R3 million over the medium term.

The agency is funded mainly from transfers from the Department of Arts and Culture, accounting for 96.5 per cent (R181.5 million) of its projected total revenue over the MTEF period. It also expects to generate R7.7 million in revenue over the MTEF period from the rental of heritage properties, and from interest. Cabinet has approved a once off allocation of R4 million in 2017/18 to the agency for the implementation of generally recognised accounting practice 103 to ensure that heritage assets are accounted for and benefit future generations.

### Programmes/objectives/activities

#### Table 37.50 South African Heritage Resources Agency expenditure trends and estimates by programme/objective/activity

	Διιά	lited outcome		Revised estimate	Average growth rate (%)	Expen- diture/ Total: Average (%)		-term expend estimate	iture	Average growth rate (%)	Expen- diture/ Total: Average (%)
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2012/13 -		2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 - 2	
Administration	29 673	36 247	29 729	48 978	18.2%	59.4%	30 312	36 435	34 321	-11.2%	52.1%
Business development	12 771	18 037	20 680	49 714	57.3%	37.5%	27 941	28 646	24 484	-21.0%	44.4%
Public engagement	790	2 588	1 727	2 536	47.5%	3.0%	2 576	2 202	2 330	-2.8%	3.5%
Total	43 234	56 872	52 136	101 228	32.8%	100.0%	60 829	67 283	61 135	-15.5%	100.0%

### Statements of historical financial performance

#### Table 37.51 South African Heritage Resources Agency statements of historical financial performance

Statement of financial performance									Outcome/ Budget
		Audited		Audited		Audited	Budget	Revised	Average
	Budget	outcome	Budget	outcome	Budget	outcome	estimate	estimate	(%)
R thousand	2012/	13	2013/	14	2014/	/15	2015/1	6	2012/13 - 2015/16
Revenue									
Non-tax revenue	762	6 256	819	5 160	863	5 878	1 888	1 888	442.8%
Other non-tax revenue	762	6 256	819	5 160	863	5 878	1 888	1 888	442.8%
Transfers received	46 938	41 942	49 931	43 828	51 990	46 580	68 552	95 552	104.8%
Total revenue	47 700	48 198	50 750	48 988	52 853	52 458	70 440	97 440	111.4%
Expenses									
Current expenses	47 700	43 234	50 750	56 872	52 853	52 136	54 811	101 228	123.0%
Compensation of employees	27 605	22 044	30 338	26 360	31 666	28 506	31 568	34 285	91.8%
Goods and services	19 593	20 007	19 890	28 920	20 859	22 038	21 161	64 861	166.7%
Depreciation	502	1 183	522	1 592	328	1 592	1 913	1 913	192.3%
Interest, dividends and rent on land	-	-	-	-	-	-	169	169	100.0%
Total expenses	47 700	43 234	50 750	56 872	52 853	52 136	54 811	101 228	123.0%
Surplus/(Deficit)	-	4 964	-	(7 884)	-	322	15 629	(3 788)	-

### Statements of estimates of financial performance

Table 37.52 South African Heritage Resources Agency statements of estimates of financial performance

Statement of financial performance			Expen-					Expen-
		Average	diture/				Average	diture/
		growth	Total:				growth	Total:
	Revised	rate	Average				rate	Average
	estimate	(%)	(%)	Me	dium-term estimat		(%)	(%)
R thousand	2015/16	2012/13	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2015/16 - 2	2018/19
Revenue								
Non-tax revenue	1 888	-32.9%	9.2%	2 704	2 868	2 150	4.4%	3.5%
Other non-tax revenue	1 888	-32.9%	9.2%	2 704	2 868	2 150	4.4%	3.5%
Transfers received	95 552	31.6%	90.8%	58 125	64 415	58 985	-14.9%	96.5%
Total revenue	97 440	26.4%	100.0%	60 829	67 283	61 135	-14.4%	100.0%
Expenses								
Current expenses	101 228	32.8%	100.0%	60 829	67 283	61 135	-15.5%	140.9%
Compensation of employees	34 285	15.9%	46.5%	33 884	36 468	38 583	4.0%	51.7%
Goods and services	64 861	48.0%	50.9%	25 722	28 715	20 352	-32.0%	45.6%
Depreciation	1 913	17.4%	2.6%	1 223	2 100	2 200	4.8%	2.7%
Interest, dividends and rent on land	169	-	0.0%	-	-	-	-100.0%	0.0%
Total expenses	101 228	32.8%	100.0%	60 829	67 283	61 135	-15.5%	100.0%
Surplus/(Deficit)	(3 788)	(2)	-	-	-	-	-100.0%	-

#### Table 37.53 South African Heritage Resources Agency personnel numbers and cost by salary level<sup>1</sup>

	estir	er of posts nated for					•												
	31 M	arch 2016				Number an	d cost <sup>1</sup> o	t person	inel posts	filled / pla	inned to	r on funde	d establis	shment				Num	-
	Number	Number																Average	Salary
	of	of																growth	level/Total:
	funded	posts																rate	Average
	posts	on approved		Actual		Revis	ed estima	ate			Med	dium-term	expenditu	ure estin	nate			(%)	(%)
		establishment	:	2014/15							2018/19		2015/16	- 2018/19					
South Af	rican Herit	tage Resources			Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit			Unit		
Agency		<b>.</b>	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost	Number	Cost	Cost		
Salary	90	90	84	28.5	0.3	86	34.3	0.4	86	33.9	0.4	86	36.5	0.4	86	38.6	0.4	4.0%	100.0%
level																			
1 – 6	13	13	9	0.9	0.1	13	1.8	0.1	13	1.9	0.1	13	2.1	0.2	13	2.2	0.2	7.5%	15.1%
7 – 10	65	65	64	19.4	0.3	62	23.2	0.4	62	21.8	0.4	62	23.5	0.4	62	24.8	0.4	2.3%	72.1%
11 – 12	9	9	8	5.0	0.6	8	5.8	0.7	8	6.3	0.8	8	6.8	0.8	8	7.2	0.9	7.5%	9.3%
13 – 16	3	3	3	3.2	1.1	3	3.5	1.2	3	3.8	1.3	3	4.1	1.4	3	4.4	1.5	7.5%	3.5%

1. Rand million.

# Additional tables

## Table 37.A Summary of conditional grants to provinces and municipalities<sup>1</sup>

				Adjusted			
	Au	dited outcome		appropriation	Medium-ter	m expenditure	estimate
R thousand	2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19
Conditional grants to provinces							
Heritage Promotion and Preservation							
Community library services grant: Current	157 504	205 047	345 786	419 407	709 143	756 611	796 434
Community library services grant: Capital	407 070	389 739	670 424	854 907	647 989	684 149	725 586
Total	564 574	594 786	1 016 210	1 274 314	1 357 132	1 440 760	1 522 020

1. Detail provided in the Division of Revenue Act (2016).

Project name	Service delivery	Current	Total				Adjusted		:	
R thousand	outputs	project stage	project cost	Audited outcome 2012/13 2013/14	outcome 2013/14	2014/15	appropriation 2015/16	Medium-tern 2016/17	Medium-term expenditure estimate 2016/17 2017/18 2	nate 2018/19
Departmental infrastructure		-								
flega projects (total project cost of	Mega projects (total project cost of at least R1 billion over the project life cycle)	cycle)								
Liberation heritage route	Construction	Construction	1 070 418	I	I	I	60 000	29 150	52 793	53 207
arge projects (total project cost of	Large projects (total project cost of at least R250 million but less than R1 billion over the project life cycle)	billion over the project life cycle)								
Sarah Baartman Centre	Construction	Construction	556 315	I	ı	4 868	40 000	48 500	42 345	46 457
mall projects (total project cost of	Small projects (total project cost of less than R250 million over the project life cycle)	t life cycle)								
Isibhubhu Cultural Arena	Construction	Construction	170 000	I	Т	77 968	I	29 150	49 000	88 700
Vlakplaas	Renovation and construction	Construction	17 000	I	ı	I	I	2 000	5 000	10 000
Isandlawana	Construction	Construction	17 000	I	ı	I	I	6 000	2 000	4 000
Nelson Mandela House	Purchase	Construction	6 000	I	I	I	4 000	2 000	I	1
Drakenstein correctional facility	Renovations	Construction	10 7 30	I	I	I	3 146	I	3 000	2 365
Archie Gumede Place	Development	Construction	6 000	-	I	I	I	2 883	3 117	1
Khoi and San heritage route	Development	Design	45 000	I	ı	I	3 000	3 500	7 500	20 000
Gumtree Mill	Construction	Construction	4 180	I	I	I	1	180	2 000	2 000
Raymond Mhlaba statue	Development	Construction	5 000	I	ı	I	I	2 000	3 000	I
Delville Wood	Construction	Construction	20 000	I	I	I	I	10 000	10 000	I
JL Dube House	Upgrades	Various	131 222	I	I	I	4 084	6 014	12 500	13 225
OR Tambo Memorial	Upgrades	Various	227 992	I	I	I	6 500	3 000	11 000	1
Ingquza Hill Museum	Upgrades	Various	163 531	I	ı	I	5 000	7 000	10 000	23 870
Incubators	Construction	Construction	10 400	I	ı	I	1	2 000	8 400	I
arge projects (total project cost of	Large projects (total project cost of at least R250 million but less than R1 billion over the project life cycle)	billion over the project life cycle)								
The Playhouse Company	Upgrades	Various	295 494	25 800	2 000	24 400	12 500	13818	1 770	1 900
Performing Arts Centre of the Free State	Upgrades	Various	268 386	15 681	4 371	5 000	24 442	30 000	20 000	10 500
Upgrading of community arts centres	Upgrades	Various	308 023	I	I	I	15 000	23 992	32 000	49 282
National Heritage Monument	Upgrades	Various	675 041	I	ı	I	72 000	5 000	40 800	120 200
Robben Island Museum	Upgrades	Various	466 858	16 405	5 754	17 530	I	15429	9344	48 000
National archives building: Pretoria	Upgrades	Various	533 213	27 266	141	44 995	116 920	93 972	66 000	4 301
					007	100 11				
Department of Arts and Culture public entities and heritage projects	Upgrades	Various	214 369	I	87 439	55 307	I	I	I	'
William Humphreys Art Gallery	Upgrades	Various	1 540	I	340	1 200	I	I	I	I
Die Afrikaanse Taalmuseum en - Monument	Upgrades	Various	8 550	I	550	1 000	I	2 000	I	I
Ditsong Museums	Upgrades	Various	63 103	8 000	19 141	14 343	2 089	5 128	1	1
KwaZulu-Natal Museum	Upgrades	Various	26 003	300	17 347	936	I	I	I	I
Luthuli Museum	Upgrades	Various	4 680	ı	1 854	883	I	500	250	I
Voortrekker Museum	Upgrades	Various	18 074	I	5 046	1 279	1	I	I	I
National Museum - Bloemfontein	Upgrades	Various	13 867	-	805	13 062	I	I	I	I
National English Literary Museum	Upgrades	Various	147 477	619	3	36 514	40 000	50 041	18 942	I
Nelson Mandela Museum	Upgrades	Various	40 108		13 718	10 230	1 750	6750	1 925	1
Anglo-Boer War Museum	Upgrades	Various	13 118		1 803	620	I	I	I	I
F C										

Table 37.B Summary of e	Table 37.B Summary of expenditure on infrastructure									
Project name	Service delivery	Current project stage	Total project cost	Audi	Audited outcome		Adjusted	Medium-term	Medium-term expenditure estimate	late
R thousand				2012/13	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19
South African Heritage Resources Agency	Upgrades	Various	1 000	I	I	1	1	I	I	1
National Library: Centre for the Book	Upgrades	Various	67 754	I	66 754	I	I	I	I	I
National Library: Pretoria Campus	Upgrades	Various	145 074	2 950	I	3 728	4 844	16 864	29 914	10 244
South African Library for the Blind	Upgrades	Various	86 952	-	19 000	2 149	650	1 036	4 766	12 307
Artscape	Upgrades	Various	211 071	43 963	45 650	I	14 758	14 750	29 000	15 000
The Market Theatre	Upgrades	Various	239 972	22 206	22 464	15 000	14 000	24 687	21 000	20 000
The South Africa State Theatre	Upgrades	Various	255 092	9 750	9 774	20 052	16 744	4 800	4 000	4 000
Windybrow Theatre	Upgrades	Various	29 712	19 712	I	I	10 000	-	-	I
Performing Arts Projects	Upgrades	Various	21 118	-	I	1 000	I	-	-	I
National Arts Council	Upgrades	Various	22 000	-	I	I	1 000	-	-	I
National Film and Video Foundation	Upgrades	Various	15 000	I	I	I	5 000	I	I	I
Freedom Park	Upgrades	Various	6 300	4 300	I	I	I	I	I	I
Cultural precincts	Upgrades	Various	8 000	I	I	I	I	I	I	I
Die Erfenisstigting	Upgrades	Various	4 192	-	-	4 192	I	-	-	I
Adams College	Upgrades	Various	5 050	-	I	4 561	Ι	-	489	I
Voortrekker Monument	Upgrades	Various	4 000	I	I	357	I	1 500	250	1 750
Blind South Africa	Upgrades	Various	1 345	I	I	1 345	I	I	I	I
Cultural precincts	Upgrades	Various	210 751	I	I	I	20 000	12 500	8 055	20 000
Upgrading of public spaces	Upgrades	Various	16 134	ı	I	I	6 683	3 000	3 451	3 000
South African Roadies Association	Construction	Various	15 000	I	I	I	10 000	5 000	-	I
Bram Fischer House	Upgrades	Various	2 000	I	I	I	2 000	I	I	I
Origins Centre	Upgrades	Various	36 707	I	I	I	3 000	I	I	I
Total			7 222 804	225 531	350 325	414 209	559 610	559 432	572 258	584 308

infrastructure
ç
ou
<b>senditure</b>
exe
5
Summary
ш.
37.
able



40 Church Square, Pretoria, 0002 | Private Bag X115, Pretoria, 0001 | **T** (012) 395 6697, **F** (012) 315 5126



